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Tel : +20 (2) 24 619 909
Fax: +20 (2) 24 619 904
www deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: The Shareholder of Orascom Telecom, Media and Technology Holding S.A.E.

Introduction

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Orascom Telecom,
Media and Technology Holding - S.A.E. and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and the consolidation statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the international Financial Reporting Standards, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidation financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standard on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control rejevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Basis for Qualificd opinion

As disclosed in more details in note (15-2), of the notes to consolidated financial statements,
the Company has modified the accounting treatment of the investment in CHEO Technolo By
JV (Koryolink) to be investment in associate instead of investment in subsidiaries. In the
management view, the control over the subsidiary’s activities was lost, due to the increase of
the severity of financial and operational obstacles and the futility of the negotiation conducted
by the management of the Group and the Korean side to the expected results that were
anticipated remove some of such obstacles according to management estimates.

Thus the investment in CHEO Technology JV (Koryolink) is measured at cost represented the
fair value that is expected to be recovered by the Company from its investments in the future.
The losses resulted from the modification of the accounting treatment amounted to US$
476,779 thousand reported in losses from discontinued operations in the income statement
note (6).

In light of the aforementioned we were not able to verify the fair value that will be recovered
at the balance sheet date and we were not able to perform other alternative procedures with
this respect.

Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effect of the matter described in the basis of qualified opinion
paragraph, the consolidation financial statement present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidation financial position of Orascom Teelecom Media and Technology Holding S.A.E
and its subsidairies as at December 31, 2015, and their consolidated financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standard.

Cairo, April 27, 2016 Q&L
0 : e, =
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014

{in thousands of US$)

Assets
Property and equipment
Intangible asscts

Investment Property
[nvestments in agsociates

Other nen-current financial assels
Other non-currcnt assets

Total non-current assels

Inventorics

Trade receivables

Other current financial assets
Other current asscts

Cash and balances at banks
Assets held for sale

Total currcnt asscis

Total Asscis

Equity and Liabilities

Share capital
Other resetves

Retained carnings

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current borrowings
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred 12x labilitics

Total non-current liabilities
Current borrowings

Trade payables and other current labilities
Current income tax linbilities

Current provisions

Liabilities held for sale

Total current liabilitics
Total Linbilities
Tatal Equity and Liabilities

“ Chief Financial Officer
Youssef Shoukry

Auditor's report 'atiached’

{The notes | 1o 35 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statemenits)

Mot

26
27
21

26

7

As of 31 December

As of 31 December

2015 2014
112,608 292,650
56,107 72,393
63,853 =
78.451 82,739
8,030 703,689
9,307 9,144
328356 1.160,615
156 264
17,401 13,963
10,818 38.005
14,872 19,550
202,454 130,251
63.801
245,701 265,834
574,057 1,426,449
366,148 366,148
{40,887) (27,277
828 573,156
326,989 912,027
16,690 189,253
342779 1,101,280
77.026 2,099
10,171 8,630
8.043 12,775
95,240 23,504
10,530 4,099
33,405 150,717
13,040 20,565
79,063 76,464
£ 49.820
136,038 301,665 _
231.278 325,169
574,057 1,426,449

Executive Chairman and Managing Director

Naguib Sawiris



IR

w o W o a

[

= Fomre

iNININRINN
W

-

IRIEIREE RN IR

u.

W W W W W W W w W WwW W W W Ww W w e w w

\ W 1

LW

ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014

{in thousamly of USS)
Continued operations
Revenues

Other income

Purchases and services

Other expenses

Personnel cost

Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment charges

Disposal of non-current assets
Operating income

Financial income

Financial expense

Foreign exchange (loss} gain

Share of loss of investment in associales

Loss before income tax

Income tax expense

Lass for the year from continuing operation

Discontinued operatinns

(Loss) profit from discontinued aperation (tet of income tax}

(Loss) profit for the year
Attributable to:

Ohwners of the company
Non-cantrolling interests

Nole

Eamnings per share {from continuing operations (basic end diluted) -

{in USS)s

Eamings per share from discontinued operations (basic and diluted) -

{in USS)

(in thousands of US$)

{Loss) prafit for the year
Other comprehensive loss:

Ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, net of

tax

Share of loss recognised directly in cquity of

associates
Cutrency translation differences

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Youssef Shoukry

Chief Financial Officer

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A%

Naguib Sawiris

(The notes 1 1o 35 are an integral pant of these Consolidated Financial Statements)

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2015 December 2814
37,791 36,464
B85 1,161
{25,898) {23,445)
{13,822) {11,388)
{17.,406) (14,522
{12.274) (3,890)
{40.727) (56,871)
157,053 (224)
85,602 (72,715)
(135,516) (47,932)
(4.176) {2.350)
5,490 {2,798)
{586} {7,058)
{49,186} {132,853)
(14,298) {4,242)
i _(63.584) (137,095}
(476.779) 174,359
{540,363) 37,264
(572,328) (8.735)
31,965 45,999
(0.012) {0.027)
(0.097) 0.033
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2015 December 2014
{540,363) 37,264
(186) -
(18,913) {59,842)
(559,462) (22,578)
(585,938) {56,060)
26476 33,482

Exccutive Chairman and Managing Director
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014

(in thouzands of USS)

As ol 1 Junuary 2014

Comprehensive income

Onher comprehensive
income

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive
income

Transactions with
OWIners

As of 31 December 2014

{in thowsands of USS)

As of 1 January 2015
Comgrehensive income

Other comprehensive income -

Loss for the yeat

Total comprehensive income -

Change in the scope of
consolidation

Total transactions with
owners

As of 31 December 2015

Chiel Financi

Equity
attributable Non-
Share Lepal  Translation  Other  Retoined to cwollt Tatal
capital  reserves rescrves  reserves  carnings  sharcholders “;:": ::g equity
of the parent s
company
366,148 81,329 (61,490) Y 581,891 968,087 155,771 1,123,858
(47,325) - - (47.325) (12.517)  (59.841)
- - - (8,735) (8,735) 45,999 37,264
- {47,325) - (8,735) (56,060) 33482 (22,578)
366,148 81,329  (108,815) 209 573,156 912,017 189,253 1,101,280
Equity
atiributable Non-
Share  Legal Translation Other Retained o :nnlrol;lln Total
capital reserves  reserves  reserves carnings  shareholders Interest & cquity
of the parent
company
366,148 81,329  (108,815) 209 573,156 912,027 189,253 1.101,280
- (13,401) {209) - (13.610) (5489) (19.099)
- - - (572,328) (572,328) 31,965 (540,363}
- (13,401) (209) (572,318) (585,938) 26476 (559.462)
o = . - - (199,039) (199.039)
- - s - 5 (199,039) (199,039)
366,148 B1329  {122.216) - 818 326,089 16,690 342,719

al Officer

Youssef Shoukry

‘The notes 1 to 35 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)

S Y

Executive Chairman and Mannging Director

Naguib Sawiris
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNCLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014
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(wn thousands of USS) Mo 31 g:c:ll:j;:r 31 D\; :::n‘;::_e:m 4
2018
Loss before income tax {49,186 (132,853)
Adpustments for
Depreciation, amonisalion and tmpainnent charpes 11,12 53,001 60,761
Fair value loss on derivative instrument 136,089 48,733
[nterest expense 14 4,176 1,267
Invesiment income 14 (573) (801)
Foreign exchange (gain) /loss 14 (5,450} 2,798
lmpainment of financial assets 14 - 1,083
Loss from disposal of assels 299 -
Disposal of non-current asscis 15 {157,053) 234
Share of profit of associate 15 586 7,058
Accruals to provisions 13,091 15,157
Changes in other assels (29,025) 1,194
Changes in other liabilines 11,189 1,993
Cash flows (used in) / generated by operating activities (22,896) 6,614
Income taxes paid (4,866} {12,393)
Interest paid {1,693) (1,565)
Interest collected 354 800
Net Cash flows used in eperating activitics (29,101) (6,544)
Cash out flinv for investments in
Property and cquipment (21.273) {2,439)
Intangible assets (1,424) (20,194}
Change in Deposits and financial asscts (1,355) (2,470)
[nvestment in new acquisition { Beltone) 13 (42,856} -
Investment in new acquisitions (Victoire) 13 (58.035) -
Tnvestment Available for sale (4,950) -
Proceeds from disposal of
Property and equipment 122 11
Disposal of investment in subsidiary [ 13,981 -
Dispasal of investment in associate 15 235210 -
Cash flows generated by / (uscd in) Investing activities 119,420 (24,992)
Cash flows from financing aclivitics
Procceds from lean and bank facilities 72,699 3,131
Payments for loans and bank facilities (3,361) (5,307
Cash flows gencrated by / (used in) financing activities 69,338 (2,176)
Net cash generated by / (uscd In) continuing operailons 159,657 33,712)
Discantinued operations
Net cash generated by operating activitics 169,259 243,755
Net cash used in investing activities (124,937) {176,726)
Net cash generated by financing activitics - 304
Net cash penerated by discontinued operations 44,322 67,393
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 203,979 33,681
Cash included in disposat assets / assels held for sale (119437 (12,742}
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalenis (12,339) (15442}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 130,251 124,754
Cashi and cash equivalents at the end of the period 202,454 130,251

. k/.«/‘f

//" Chief Financial Officer Exccutive Chairman and Managing Dircetor
! Youssef Shoukry Naguib Sawiris
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.AF.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. Genera! information

Orascom Telecom, Media and Technology Holding S.A.E. (“*OTMT" or the “Company™) is a joint stock
company with its head office in Cairo, Egypt. As part of a larger transaction pursuant to which VimpelCom
Ltd had acquired Orascom Telecom Holding, S.A.E. {(“OTH"), its sharcholders agreed to cffect the
demerger, whereby, OTH was split into two companies, OTH and the Company and certain telecom, cable
and media and technology assets where transferred to the Company.

The Company and its subsidiarics (together the “Group™) are business operating in high growth emerging
markets in the Middle East and Brazil. The Company is a subsidiary of Orascom TMT Investment S.a.r.l. or
the “Parent Company” (formerly Weather Investments [1, “Weather Invesiments™).

The Company’s shares are listed on the Egyptian Stock Exchange and its GDRs are listed on the London
Stock Exchange.

The Company prepares its separate and consolidated financial statements for statutory purposes in
accordance with applicable Egyptian laws and regulations and Egyptian Accounting Standards. The IFRS
consolidated financial statements are prepared for the convenience of international sharcholders and to meet
the continuing obligations of the Company’s GDR listing on the London Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Consolidated
Financial Statements”) were approved for issuc by the Board of Directors of the Company on
March 10, 2015.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) and its interpretations as adopted by the International Accounting Standards
Board (*IASB™) and all interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC") and all interpretations of the Standing Interpretations Committee {("SIC™).

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the
following:

*  derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value;
*  Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.

For presentational purposes, the current/non-current distinction has been used for the statement of financial
position. The statement of comprehensive income is presented using the two-statement approach, dividing
items of comprchensive income between a separate income statement and a separate statement of
comprehensive income. Expenscs arc analysed in the income statement using a classification based on their
nature. The indirect method has been selected to present the cash flow statement.

The information presented in this document has been presented in (housands of United States Dollar
("US$™), except carnings pet share and unless otherwise stated.

il
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.F.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™)

2.2.1 New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements

Amendment to IAS 32, *Financial instruments: Presentation’ on offsctting financial assets and financial
liablities. This amendment clarifies that the right of sct-off must not be contingent on a future event. It must
also be legally enforceable for all counterparties in the normal course of business, as well as in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptey. The amendment also considers scttlement mechanisms. The amendment
had no significant effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements,

Amendments to 1AS 36, ‘Impatrment of assets’, on the recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets. This amendment removed certain disclosures of the recoverable amount of CGUS, which had been
included in IAS 36 by the issue of IFRS 13. The amendment had no significant effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements

Amendment to IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement’ on the novation of
derivatives and the continuation of hedge accounting, This amendment considers legislative changes to
*over-the-counter’ derivatives and the establishment of central counterpartics. Under 1AS 39, novation of
derivatives 10 central counterparties would result in discontinuance of hedge accounting. The amendment
provides relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a hedging instrument meets specified
criteria. The amendment had no significant effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 21, *Levies’, scts out the accounting for an obligation to pay a levy if that liability is within the scope
of IAS 37 *Provisions’. The interpretation addresses what the obligating event is that gives rise to pay a levy
and when a liability should be recognised. The Group is not currently subjected to significant levies so the
impact on the Group is not material,

Amendments (o IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements’, IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities” and IAS 27 “Separate Financial Statements’ on consolidation for investment entitics. These
amendments mean that many funds and similar entities will be exempt from consolidating most of their
subsidiaries. Instead, they will measure them at fair value through profit or loss. The amendments give an
exceplion (o entities that meet an ‘investment entity” definition and which display particular characieristics,
Changes have also been made to IFRS 12 to introduce disclosures that an investment entity needs to make.
As the Group is not an investment entity (based on the criteria set out in IFRS 10), the application of the
amendments had no impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

2.2.2 Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not adopted the following Standards
and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. They will be effective on or after the dates
described below.,

New, amended and revised Standards and Interpretations Effective
from
Varions  Annual improvements 2012: these annual improvements amend standards =~ | July 2014

from the 2010 - 2012 reporting cycle. It includes changes to:

s IFRS 2, ‘Share based payvments’, and clarifics the definition of a *vesting
condition’ and separately defines ‘performance condition’ and ‘service
condition’'.

¢ IFRS 3, *Business combinations’, and clarifics that an obligation to pay
contingent consideration which meets the definition of a financial
instrument is classified as a financial liability or equity, on the basis of the
definitions in LAS 32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation'. It also
clarifies that all non-equity contingent consideration is measured at fair
value at cach reporting date, with changes in value recognised in profit and
loss.
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECITNOLOGY HOLDING S.AE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

New, amended and revised Standards and Interpretations

[AS 19

IFRS 11

IAS 16 &
IAS 38

o 1AS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and 1AS 38, ‘Iniangible assets’
arc amended to clarify how the gross carrying amount and the accumulated
depreciation are treated where an entity uses the revaluation model. IFRS 8,
*Operating segments” which is amended to require disclosure of the
Judgements made by management in aggregating operating segments.

It is also amended to require a reconciliation of segment assets to the
enlity’s assets when segment assets are reported.

» [AS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ is amended to include, as a related
party, an entity that provides key management personnel services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity (the ‘management
entity’). Disclosure of the amounts charged to the reporting entity is
required.

+ Annual improvements 2013: these annual improvements amend
standards from the 2011 - 2013 reporting cycle. It includes changes to
IFRS 3, *Business combinations’ on clarification regarding joint
arrangements.

e [FRS 13, ‘Fair valve’ which amended the basis of conclusions to clarify
that it did not intend to remove the ability to measure short term
receivables and payables at invoice amounts where the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

® JAS 40, ‘Investment property’ is amended to clarify that [AS 40 and [FRS
3 arc not mutually exclusive. IAS 40 assists users to distinguish between
investment property and owner-occupied property. Preparers also need to
consider the guidance in IFRS 3 to determine whether the acquisition of an
investment property is a business combination.

Amendment to 1AS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ regarding employee or third party
contributions to defined benefit plans, The amendment applies to contributions
from cmployees or third partics to defined benefit plans and clarifies the
treatment of such contributions. The amendment distinguishes between
contributions that are linked to service only in the period in which they arise
and those linked to service in more than one period.

The objective of the amendment is to simplify the accounting for contributions
that are independent of the number of years of employee service, for example
employee contributions that are caleulated according to a fixed percentage of
salary.

Entities with plans that require contributions that vary with service will be
required to recognise the benefit of those contributions over employee's
working lives.

Amendment to IAS 16, *Property, plant and equipment’ and 1AS 38,
*Intangible assets' regarding depreciation and amortisation. This amendment
clarifies that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the depreciation of
an assel is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that
includes the use of an asset gencrally reflects factors other than the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in (he asset.

This has also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be an inappropriate
basis for measuring the consumption of the cconomic benefits ecmbodied in an
intangible asset.

The presumption may only be rebutted in certain limited circumstances. These
are where the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue; or where it
can be demonstrated that revenue and the consumption of the economic
benefits of the intangible asset are highly correlated.

Effective
from

1 July 2014

1 January
2016

1 January
2016
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

New, amended and revised Standards and Interpretations

IAS 16 &
JAS 41

IFRS 10
& IAS 28

IAS 27

1FRS 14

IFRS 10
& IAS 28

IAS ]

Various

Amendments to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and 1AS 41,
‘Agriculture’ regarding bearer plants. These amendments change the reporting
for bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber trees and oil palms. Bearer plants
should be accounted for in the same way as property, plant and equipment
beeause their operation is similar to that of manufacturing. The amendments
inciude them in the scope of IAS 16 rather than [AS 41,

The production on bearer plants will remain in the scope of IAS 41,

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 regarding the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. These amendments
address an inconsistency between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

A full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves a business. A
partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even if those assets arc in a subsidiary.

Amendment to [AS 27, ‘Separate financial siatements’ regarding the equity
method. The amendment allows entities to use the equity methed to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate
financial statements,

IFRS 14, ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’,

This standard permits first-time adopters of [FRS to continue to recognise
amounts refated to rate regulation in accordance with their previous GAAP
requirements when they adopt IFRS. However, (o enhance comparability with
cntities that already apply IFRS and do not recognise such amounts, the
standard requires that the effect of rate regulation must be presented separately
from other items.

Amendments to [FRS 10 and 1AS 28 clarify the application of the consolidation
exception for investment entities and their subsidiaries.

Amendments 1o clarify guidance in IAS | *Presentation of Financial
Statements’ on materiality and aggregation, the presentation of subtotals, the
structure of financial statements and the disclosure of accounting policies. The
amendments form a part of the IASB's Disclosure Initiative, which cxplores
how financial statement disclosures can be improved.

Annual improvements 2014: Thesc annual improvements amend standards
from the 2012 - 2014 reporting cycle. It includes changes to:

o IFRS 5, ‘Non-current asscts held for sale and discontinued opevations’ -
The amendment clarifies that, when an asset {or disposal group) is
reclassified from ‘held for sale’ to *held for distribution’, or vice versa, this
does not constitute a change 1o a plan of salc or distribution, and does not
have fo be accounted for as such. This means that the asset (or disposal
group) does not need to be reinstated in the financial statements as if it had
never been classified as *held for sale” or *held for distribution’ simply
because the manner of disposal has changed. The amendment also explains
that the guidance on changes in 2 plan of sale should be applicd to an asset
(or disposal group) which ceases to be held for distribution but is not
reclassified as ‘held for sale’.

o IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’ - There are two
amendments:

- Servicing contracts - [f an entity transfers a financial asset to a third
party under conditions, which allow the transferor to derccognise the
asset, IFRS 7, requires disclosurc of all types of continuing
involvement that the entity might still have in the transferred assets.
The standard provides guidance about what is meant by continuing

Effective
from _

1 January
2016

I January
2016

1 January
2016

1 January
2016

1 January
2016

I January
2016

! Janvary
2016
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECIHINOLOGY IHOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

New, amended and revised Standards and Interpretations

IFRS 15

IFRS 9

involvement. The amendment is prospective with an aption to apply
retrospectively. There is a consequential amendment to IFRS 1 1o give
the same relief to first time adopters.

- Interim financial statements the amendment clarifies that the
additional disclosure required by the amendments to IFRS 7,
*Disclosure - Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities® is not
specifically required for all interim periods unless required by [AS 34.
This amendment is retrospective.

o [AS 19, ‘Employee bencfits’ The amendment clarifies that, when
determining the discount rate for post-cmployment benefit obligations, it is
the currency that the liabilities are denominated in that is important, not the
country where they arise. The assessment of whether there is a deep market
in high-quality corporalc bonds is based on corporate bonds in that
currency, not corporate bends in a particular country. Similarly, where
there is no deep market in high-quality corporate bonds in that currency,
government bonds in the relevant currency should be used. The
amendment is retrospective but limited to the beginning of the carliest
period presented.

o [AS 34, ‘Iuerim financial reporting’ -~ the amendment clarifies what is
meant by the reference in the standard to *information disclosed elsewhere
in the interim financial report’. The amendment also amends IAS 34 to
require a cross-teference from the interim financial statements to the
location of that information. The amendment is retrospective.

IFRS 15, *Revenue from contracts with customers’.

This is the converged standard on revenue recognition. It replaces IAS 11,
‘Construction contracts’, |1AS 18, ‘Revenue' and related interpretations.

Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or service. A
customer abtains contral when it has the ability to direct the use of and obtain
the benefits from the good or service.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services 1o customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. An entity recognises revenue in accordance with that
core principle by applying the following steps:

Step 1: Identify the contraci(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract

®  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfics a
performance obligation

IFRS 15 also includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements that will resull
in an entity providing users of financial statements with comprehensive
information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

IFRS 9, *Financial instruments’

The complete version of IFRS 9 replaces most of the guidance in IAS 39. IFRS
9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value
through OCI and fair value through P&L. The basis of classification depends
on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Investments in cquity instruments are required 1o be

Effective
{from_

1 January
2018

1 January
2018
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

New, amended and revised Standards and Interpretations Effective
from

measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at
inceplion to preseni changes in fair value in OCI. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in
1AS 39.

For financial liabilities there were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair value, through profit or
loss.

IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge cffectivencss by replacing the bright
line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an economic relationship between the
hedged item and hedging instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio® to be the same
as the onc management actually uses for risk management purposes.
Contemporancous documentation is still required but is different to that
currently prepared under 1AS 39,

IFRS 16  IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ 1 January

In January 2016, the IASB issucd IFRS 16 - Leases, which scts out the 2019
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both partics to a contract and replaces the previous leases standard,
1AS 17 - Leases. IFRS 16, which is not applicable to service contracts, but only
applicable to leases or lease components of a contract, defines a lease as a
conltract that conveys to the customer (lessee) the right to use an asset for a
peried of time in exchange for consideration, IFRS 16 eliminates the
classification of leases for the lessee as either operating leases or finance leases
as required by LAS 17 and, instead, introduces a single lessee accounting model
whercby a lessee is required to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with
a term that is greater than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value, and to recognise depreciation of leases assets separately from interest on
lease liabilities in the income statement. As IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward ihe lessor accounting requitements in LAS 17, a lessor will continue lo
classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases and (o account for these
two types of leases differently,

The Group is currently assessing whether these changes will affect the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application.

2.3 Summary of main accounting principles and policies

The main accounting principles and policies adopted in preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements
are set our below. These policies have been applied consistently by the Group entities,

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries arc all cntities (including struciured entitics) over which the Group has conirol. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposes to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Consolidated
Financial Statements include the financial stalements of the Company and the financial statements of those
entitics over which the Company bas control, both directly or indircctly, from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group until the date such control ceases.

The financial statements used in the consolidation process are those prepared by (he individual Group
entitics in accordance with IFRS.
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The consolidation procedures used are as follows:

The asscts and liabilities and income and expenses of subsidiaries are included on a line-by-line
basis, allocating to non-controlling interests, where applicable, the share of equity and profit or loss
for the period that is attributable to them. The resulting balances are presented separately in equity
and the consolidated income statement; the acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred 1o the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilitics assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net asscts;

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with 1AS 39 cither in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity;

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the interest acquired in the net fair
value at the acquisitton date of the assets and liabilitics of the entity or business acquired. Goodwill
relating to investments accounted for using the equity method is included in the carrying amount of
the investment. Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the fair values of nen-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If the consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss;

acquisition costs on business combinations are expensed as incurred;

The purchase of equity holdings from non-controlling holders are accounted for as equity
transactions that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difTerence
between fair value of any consideration received and the relevant share of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity;

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions carried out between companies consolidated on a line-
by-line basis and the respective tax effects are eliminated if material, as are corresponding balances
for receivables and payables, income and expense, and finance income and expense.

Asseciates

Associates are investments in companies where the Group exercises a significant influence, which is
presumed Lo exist when the Group holds voting rights between 20% and 50%. Associates are accounted for
using the equity method.

The equity method is as follows:

The Group’s share of the profit or loss of an investee is recognised in the income statement from the
date when significant influence begins up to the date when that significant influence ceases or when
the investment is classified as held for sale. Investments in associates with negative shareholders’
equity are impaired and a provision for its losses is accrued only if the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation 1o cover such losses. Equity changes in investees accounted for using the
cquity method that do not result from profit or Joss are recognised directly in consolidated equity
reserves;

The Group determines at cach reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. IT this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its comrying
value;

if the ownership intercst in an associate is reduced, but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit and less;
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

s Unrealised gains and losses generated from transactions between the Company or its subsidiaries
and its investees accounted for using the equity method arc climinated on consolidation for the
portion pertaining to the Group; unrealised losses are eliminated unless they represent impairment.

Management fees received from associates are included within revenue.

Appendix A includes a list of the entities included in the scope of conselidation.

Interests in joint operatipns

A joint operation is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity that is subject to joint control that is when the strategic financial and operating policy decisions
relating 10 the activities of the joint operation require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Joint operation arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate entity in which cach venture has an
interest are referred to as jointly controlled entities. The Group reports ils interests in jointly controlled
entities using proportionate consolidation, except when the entities are in the incorporation phase or have not
staried significant operations till the date of the consolidated financial statements. Investments classified as
held for sale, are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Asscts Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, where they are stated at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs
to sell.
Under the proportionate consolidation method, the Group’s share of the asscts, liabilities, income and
cxpenses of jointly controlled entitics are combined with the corresponding items in the consolidated
financial statements on a line-by-line basis.
Where the Group transacts with its jointly controlled entitics, unrealized profits and losses arc eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the joint operation.
The following tabie provides a list of the jointly controfled entitics, in which Beltone Financial Holding
holds direct and indirect interests:

Interest percentage

Segment Country Direct and indirect interest in
cntity

Misr Beltone Asset Management  Mutual funds management Egypt 50%

Foreign currency translation

Functional and grc.s‘enration CUITCIICY

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entitics are measured using the currency ol
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional
currency of the Company is Egyptian pound. The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in ‘US
Dollars’ (US$), which is the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and halances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the relevant entity at the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Menetary asscts and liabilities denominated in
forcign currencies are translated, at the reporting date, into the prevailing exchange rates at that date. Foreign
currency exchange differences arising on the scttlement of transactions and the transiation of the statement
of financial position arc recognised in the income statement. Gains and losses on long-term financing
provided to Group subsidiaries by the parent company, for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
occur, are initially recognised in other comprehensive income and reclassified to the income statement on
disposal of the relevant entity.

Group companies
The financial statements of the Grou;: entitics are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

» assets and liabilities are translated at the closing exchange rate;
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

¢ income and expenses arc translated at the average exchange rate for the period;

e all resulting cxchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity in the
“translation reserve” until the Group loses control of the relevant subsidiary. When the Group
disposes of a foreign operation the translation reserve, previously recognised in equity, is
transferred to the income statement;

+ poodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treatcd as
asscts and liabilitics of the foreign entity and are translated at the closing exchange rate; and

* in the preparation of the conselidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of foreign subsidiaries are
translated at the average exchange rate for the period.

The exchange rates applied in relation to the US$ are as follows:

Average for the Average for the

Closing rate as of Closing rate as of

year ended year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2015 31 December 2014 31 December 2014
Egyptian Pound (EGP) 0.1297 0.1277 01311 0.1398
Pakisian Rupee (PKR) 0.0097 0.0096 0.0099 0.0099
Furo (EUR) Lol 10860 1.3252 1.2098
DRRK Won (KI'W} 0.0093 0.0092 0.0100 0.0095

Property and eguipment

Property and equipment are stated at purchase cost or production cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. Cast includes expenditure directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for use and any dismantling and removal costs which may be incurred because of
contractual obligations, which require the asset to be returned 1o its original state and condition.

Subscquent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of Ihe item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred. Each asset is trcated scparately if it has an autonomously determinable
useful life and value. Depreciation is charged at rates calculated to write off the costs over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis from the date the asset is available and ready for use.

The useful lives of property and cquipment and their residual values are reviewed and updated, where
necessary, at lcast at cach year-cnd. Land is not depreciated. When a depreciable assct is composed of
identifiable separate components whose useful lives vary significantly from those of other components of the
asset, depreciation is calculated for each component separately, applying the “component approach™,

The uscful lives estimated by the Group for the various categories of property and equipment are as follows.

Number of years

Land and buildings

Buildings 50

Leasehold improvements and renovations 3-8

Plant and machinery 8-15
Cable syztem und equipment 4-20
Commiercial and other tangilie assers

Tools 5-10
Computer equipment 35
Fumniture and fixtures 5-10
Vehicles 3-6

Gains or losses arising from the sale or retirement of assets are detennined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset sold or retired and are recognised in the income
statement in the period incurred under “Disposal of non-current assets™
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FCOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Leases

The Group leases certain property and equipment. Leases of properiy and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classificd as finance leases. Finance leases arc
capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments.

Each leasc payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest clement of the
finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
raic of interest on the remaining balance of the linbility for cach period. The property and equipment
scquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the uscful life of the asset and the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor} are charged lo the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and sccumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated uscful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
cach reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Iniangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried al cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent 1o initial recognilion, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment tosses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that arc acquired separately,

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of on intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Licenses

Costs for the purchase of telecommunication licenses are capitalised. Amortisation is charged on a straight-
line basis such as to write off the cost incurred for the acquisition of a right over the shorter of the period of
its expected use and the term of the underlying asreement, starting from the date on which the acquired
license may be exercised.

Saftware

Acquired software licences arc capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. Software licenses are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful life (between 3 to
8 years), while software maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement in the period in which they
are incurred.
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECIINOLOGY HOLDING 5.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Costs incurred on development of software producls are recognised as intangible assels when ihe Group has
intentions to complete and use or scll the assets arising from the project, considering the existence of a
market for the asset, its commercial and technological feasibility, its costs can be mcasured reliably and
there are adequate financial resources to complete the development of the asset. Other development
expenditures are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Directly attributable costs that arc capitalised as part of a software product include software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development expenditures that do
not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as
an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use - are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that arc subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever cvents or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. In determining an asset’s value in use the estimated future cash
flows are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects the market’s current assessment of the cost of money
for the investment period and the specific risk profile of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assels are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units,
“CGU™). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of
the CGUs, or Groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergics of the combination. Each unit
or Group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level, Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of poodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to scll. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Investment Property

Investment propertics are property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held by the Group to earn
rental income or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for
use in supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Invesiment propertics are initially
measured at cost. The cost of a purchased investment property comprises its purchase price and any direetly
attributable expenditure.

Directly attributable expenditure includes, for example, professional fees for legal services, property transfer
taxes and other transaction cosis. Subscquent to initial recognition, the Group has clected to measure
investment properties at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Investment property is derecognised upon disposal, when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits expected ftom its disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of investmenl property are determined as the difference between Uie nel disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assct and are recognised in profit or loss in the period of the retirement or dispasal.
Reclassifications to / from investment property are made when, and only when, there is a change of use.

Revenue from operating lease renlals is recognised on a straight-line basis over the relevant term of the
fease. The rental income generated by investment properties is recognised within revenue in the consolidated
income statement,

L6
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Depreciatien is charged to the income statement on a strmight-line basis over the estimated uscful lives of
cach component of the investment properties. The estimated useful lives of leased units is estimated at 50
years.

Financial instruments

Finaneial instruments consist of financial assets and liabilitics whose classification is determined on their
initial recognition and on the basis of the purpose for which they were purchased. Purchases and sales of
financial instruments are recognised at their settlement date.

Financial asseis

The group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial asset out of the held for trading
category il the financial assct is no longer held for the purposc of selling in the near term. Financial asscts
other than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the held for trading category only in
rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In
addition, the group may choose to reclassify financial asscts that would meet the definition of loans and
receivables out of the held for trading or available-for-sale categories if the group has the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until malurity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications arc made at fair value as of the reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before reclassification
date arc subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financisl assets reclassificd to loans and receivables
and held-te-maturity categories are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in estimates of
cash flows adjust effective interest rates prospectively.

With the exception of derivative financial assets, the Group does not hold any financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss; see “Derivative financial instruments” for the accounting policy on derivatives.

At initial recognition, the group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not a fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are dircctly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified in the category of available of sale, held to maturity, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss loans and receivables and subsequently measured as described.

Loans and receivables and held-to maturity investments are subsequently carricd at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.,

Loans and receivables comprise “trade and other reccivables® in the statement of financial position. Loans
and receivables are non-derivative financial instruments which are not traded on an active market and which
are expected to generate fixed or determinable repayments. They are included as current assets unless they
are contractually due more than twelve months after the reporting date in which case they are classified as
non-current assets. These assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Available-for-sale [inancial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gain or losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised as follows:
¢ for “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™- in profit or loss within other income or
other expenses;
® for available-for-sale financial asscts that are monetary securitics denominated in a foreign
currency- translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost of the security are
recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income,
The Group has investments classified as available for sale. As the fair value cannot be reliably determined,
the investment is measured at cost. Cost is adjusted for impairment losses if necessary, as described in the
paragraph “Impairment of Financial Assets”.

17
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Dividends on financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss as part of financial income from continuing operations when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Interest income from financial assets are recognised at fair value through profit or lJoss. Interest on available-
for-sale sccurities, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables calculated using the cffective
interest methed is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as part of financial income from continuing
operation.

The classification of an asset as current or nen-current is the consequence of strategic decisions regarding
the estimated period of ownership of the asset and its effective marketability, with those, which are expected
{0 be realised within twelve months from the reporting date being classified as current assets.

Financial assets arc derecognised when the right to reccive cash flows from them expires or have been
transferred and the Group has cffectively transferred all risks and rewards related to the instrument and its
control.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of cach reporting period whether there is objective cvidence that a financial
asset or group of financial asscts is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objeclive evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred afier the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event™) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated fiture cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. In the case of equity investments classified as- available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fir value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that the assets are
impaired.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial rcorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the cstimated future cash flows, such as cianges in arrcars or cconomic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Assets carried at amortised cost

For lozns and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial assct’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
cffective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may mcasure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If. in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively 1o an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale
If there is objective evidence of impairment for available-for sale financial assets, the cumulative loss-
micasured as the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on

the financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss- is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment [osses on cquity instruments that were recognised in profit or loss are not reversed though profit
or loss in a subscquent period.
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

In the fair value of a debt instrument clussified as available-for-sale increnses in a subscquent period and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring afier the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the cffective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash-flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwiding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group entity arc classificd either as financial liabilitics or as cquity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Eguity instruments

An cquity instrument is any contract that evidences o residual interest in the assets of an entity afier
deducting all of its liabilitics. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs,

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities consisting of borrowings, trade payables and other obligations are measured at amortised
cost using the cffective interest method. Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities except where
the Group has an unconditional right to defer payment until at least twelve months afier the reporting date.

Financial liabilities are derccognised when settled and the Group has transferred all the related costs and
risks relating to an instrument,

Derivative financial instruments and embedded derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value, The Group has entered into foreign currency forwards for the
purposcs of hedging the risk on foreign exchange rates in relation to the receivabie on the partial disposal of
ECMS. In addition, the agreement between the Company and France Telecom in relation to ECMS also
includes put and call options, The fair value of the options on ECMS is disclosed in Note (20). Fair value
gains and losses on all of the Groups derivative financial instruments are recognised in the income statement
within finance income and expense.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as scparate derivatives when their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at fair value through profit or lass,

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of purchase cost or production cost and net realisable value, Cost is based
on the weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. When necessary, obsolescence
allowances are made for slow-maving and obsolete inventorics.



| O vy

oW WO W W OW W W W W W W W W W W W W s oa s s

g W W OWw W W W W

W

ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-lerm highly
liquid investments with original maturitics of three months or less. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, bank overdralfts are shown within borrowings in current liabilitics.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax cxpense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax 15 also
recognised in equily.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date in the countries where the Group's subsidiaries and associates operate and gencrate
taxable income. Management periodically cvaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable 1ax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriale on
the basis of amounis expected to be paid to the tax authoritics.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
goodwill or the initial recognition of an assct or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date
and are expeeted to apply when the related deferred income tax assel is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only (o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised,

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiarics, associates
and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the near future.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time that the
linbility to pay the related dividend is recognised.

Deferred tax assets and libilities arc offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offsct current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes lcvied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on differcnt tax entities, but they intend to settle current fax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Business Combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combination, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the ncquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred;

liabilitics incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

equity interests issued by the group;

fair value of any asset or linbility resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement and;

fair value of any pre-existing cquity interest in the subsidiary;

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent Tisbilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exeeptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis cither at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Acquisition-related casts are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:

®  consideration transferred;
& amount of any non-conirolling interest in the acquired entity, and
= acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable asscts of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly on profit or loss os a bargain purchase,

Where the scttlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounés payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achicved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are only recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising from
past events that will probably result in a future outflow of resources, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The amount provided represents the best
estimate of the present value of the outlay required 1o meet the obligation. The interest rate used in
determining the present value of the liability reflects current market rates and takes into account the specific
risk of each liability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value added tax, rebates
and discounts and afier eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group transfers the risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods. Revenue from services is recognised in the income statement by reference to the stage of
completion and only when the outcome can be reliably estimated.

More specifically, the criteria followed by the Group in recognising ordinary revenue are as follows:

s revenuc arising from post-paid traffic, interconnection and roaming is recognised on the basis of the
actual usage made by each subscriber and telephone operator, Such revenue includes amounts paid
for access to and usage of the Group network by customers and other domestic and international
telephone operatots;

# revenue from the sale of prepaid cards and recharging is recognised on the basis of the prepaid
traffic actually used by subscribers during the period. The unused portion of raffic at period end is
recognised deferred income;

s one-off revenue from mobile (prepaid or subscription) activation and/or substitution, prepaid
recharge fees and the activation of new services and tariff plans is recognised for the full amount at
the moment of activation independent of the period in which the actual services are rendered by the
Group. In the case of promotions with a cumulative plan stll open at the end of the period, the
activation fee is recognised on an accruals basis so as to match the revenue with the period in which
the service may be used;
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

* revenue from bandwidth capacity sales (Cable segment revenue) is recognised over the period of
the contract on the basis of usage of bandwidth by the customers. Advances received from
customers, for which the service has not yet been provided is disclosed as deferred income.

Dividend income from investments recorded al cost is recognised when the right 1o receive payment is
established.

Revenue of the financial service section

When the outcome of 2 transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
associated with the transaction shall be recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction
at the end of the reporting period. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the
following conditions are satis{ied:

a) the amount of revenue can be measured relinbly; and

b) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

¢) the slage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably;
and

d) the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs (o compiete the transaction can be measured reliably.
Operating Revenues
Operating revenues represent the following types:

Investment banking revenue

The activitics revenue is recognised that represented in security and investment banking fees for the
companies when complete the implementation of the service.

Management fees of fimds and portfolios

Management fees are recognised as revenue on an accrual busis, as the services are rendered, in accordance
with the contractual terms of each fund and portfolio.

Incentive fees are recognised as revenue based on predetermined percentages agreed with clients, calculated
by reference to the annual return on cach fund or portfolio, but only to the extent that the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably and it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group,

Business Combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combination, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assels arc acquired. The consideration tronsferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

¢ {air values of the assets transferred;

liabilitics incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

cquity interests issued by the group;

fair valuc of any asset or liability resuiting from o contingent consideration arrangement and;
fair value of any pre-cxisting equity interest in the subsidiary;

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent lisbilitics assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable asscts.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred,
The excess of the:

® consideration transferred:
© amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, angd
®  acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

g
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Dividend income from investments recorded at cost is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Commissions

Sale commissions: represent commissions on sale of securities for clients in local or global stock exchanges,
calculated at specified rates agreed with clients as a percentage of the sale transaction.

Purchase commissions: represent commissions on purchase of sccurities for clients in local or global stock
exchanges, calculated at specificd rates agreed with clients as a percentage of the purchase transaction.

Custodian fees

Custodian fees arc recognised as the difference between fees collected from clients and those incurred or
paid to custodians.
They arc recognised according lo contracts signed with clients on acerual basis.

They arc recognised the commissions for collecting coupons for customers, the collection of these coupons
are on behalf of the customers.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

Earnings per share

Basic

Basic carnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders of
the Company, both from continuing and discontinucd operations, by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issuc during the period excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held as
treasury shares.

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company outstanding during the
period where, compared to basic ecarnings per share, the weighted average number of shares outstanding is
modified to include the conversion of all dilutive potential shares, while the profit for the period is modified
to include the effects of such conversion net of taxation. Diluted earnings per share are not calculated when
there are losses as any dilutive effeet would improve camings per share,

Sepment reporting

Operating segments arc reported in a manner which is consistent with the internal reporting information
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chicf operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the board
of directors of the Company.

Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities) that are expected to be recovered
primarily through salc rather than through continuing use are classified as held for sale. Immediately before
classification as held for sale, the asscts (or components of a disposal group) are remeasured in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policics. Thereafier the assets and liabilities held for sale (or disposal group} are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Any impairment loss on a
disposal group is first allocated to goodwill, and then to the remaining asscts and liabilities on a pro rata
basis, cxcept that no loss is allocated to inventeries, financial assets and deferred tax assets, which continue
to be measured in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. lmpairment losses on initial

23
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S5.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

classification as held for sule and subsequent losses on re-measurement are recognised in the income
statement. Subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell may be recognised in the income statement
only to the extent of the cumulative impairment loss that has been recognised previously.

Discontinued aperations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's business thut represents a separate major line of
business or geographical arca of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if carlicr. When an operation 15
classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative incame staterment is re-presented as if the operation
bad been discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different

levels have been defined os follows:

e the fair valuc of 2 financial instrument traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active, if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regulariy occurring market Iransactions on an arm’s length basis. These

instruments are included in Level 1.
e the fair value of instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example privately

negotiated derivatives between two parties) is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required 1o fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include quoted market prices or dealer and
broker quotes for similar instruments and other techniques such as option valuation models and discounted
cash flows.

The following table scis forth the Group's financial asscts and liabilities that are measured at fair value as of

31 December 2015 and 2014,
As of 31 December

2015 2014
(in thousands of USS) Level § Level 2
Asscls
Financial usscts available for sule ot fair value { EGX 30) 544 -
Treasury honds 4,782 -
Put option with Orange SA 146,720
Total asscts 5327 146,720

The Group did not measure any financial assets or linbilities as level 3 fair value cstimates and there were no
transfers between level 1 and 2 during the years ¢nded 31 December 2015 or 2014,

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example over-the-counter
derivatives, including put and call options) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
lechniques maximise the use of observable market date where it is available and rely as little as possible en
entity specific estimates. 1T all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on chservable market

data. the instrument is included in level 3.



4

¥

158

I I Y L 1 I D R O Y [ R R M I R AR A A A I I I I I I i

m!a*i'J'XNLN‘JUWWWWWWWEJWWWWWWWWW&JMWJ&mu.mLa

H
b

A

ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Specific valuation techniques used o value financial instruments include;

- quoted market prices of shares traded on a stock market;
- fair valuc of forward foreign cxchange contracts is determined using forward cxchange rates at the
balance sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value;
- other techniques, such as discounted cash flows and a Monte Carlo approach combined with the
Longstaff-Schwartz algorithm for the remaining financial instruments,
Particularly investment in financial assets available for sale, and mainly Smart Village Company, is stated at
cost, as it relates 10 unlisted equity securitics that do not have o quoted market price in an active market for
an identical instrument and for which fair value cannot be measured reliably. For further details, refer to
Note (20) *Other financial assets’.

The carrying amount of short-term trade and other receivables and payables reasonably approximates fair
value as of 31 December 20135,

3 Use of estimates and critical judgements

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires that the directors apply accounling
policics and methodologies that, in some circumstances, are based upon complex and subjective judgments
and estimates that arc based on historical experience and assumptions that are considered reasonable and
realistic at (he time, considering the relevant circumstances. The application of such estimates and
assumptions affects the amounts recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and cash flows, as well
as in the notes. Actual results might differ from such estimates due to the uncertainty surrounding the
assumptions and conditions upon which estimates are based. The accounting estimates that require the more
subjective judgment of management in making assumptions or estimates regarding the effects of matters that
are inherently uncertain and for which changes in conditions may significantly affect the results reported in
these Consolidated Financial Statements are summarised below,

Valuation of financial instrunients

For some financial instruments that are not traded in an active market and included in the finoncial
statements such as financial derivatives, Management estimates fair value using valuation techniques based
on inputs and assumptions, some of which are linked to quoted market prices and others on management's
estimations. Management applied reasonable option valuation models during the period in estimating the fair
value of these financial instruments. Management also conducted a sensitivity analysis for changes in the
estimated fair value of these instruments and changes in inputs used for assessing the reasonzbleness of
results reached using the aceeptable valuation models.

Imgairmem of nan-current asseis

Non-current assets are reviewed 1o determine whether there are any indications that the net carrying amount
of these assets may not be recoverable and that they have suffered an impairment loss that needs to be
recognised. In order to determine whether any such clements exist, it is necessary to make subjective
measurements, based on information obtained within the Group, in the market and on past experience. When
indicators are identified that an asset may have become impaired, the Group estimates the impairment loss
using suitable valuation techniques. The identification of clements indicating that a potentinl impairment
exists and estimates of the amount of the impairment, depend on factors that may vary in time, affecting
management’s assessments and estimates,

It
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY [HOLDING S.A.E,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts ol its financial assets to
dctermine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events (o “Joss event™) that occurred after the initial recognition of a financial asset or a group of
financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of an assct or a group of assets have been affected.

The Group monitors impairment losses recognised, and where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of a financial asset or a group of (inancial asscts is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, bul the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset,

Intangibles

Intangible asscts constitute a significant part of the Group’s total assets and the scheduled amortisation
charges from a significant part of (e annual operation expenses. The useful economic lives arrived at, on the
basis of management’s estimates and assumptions, have a major impact on the valuation of intangible assets.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the intang:ible asset is estimated, in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss {if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, intangible assets are allocated to
individual cash-gencrating units, or otherwise they arc allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Degrecialiou of non-current assets

The cost of property and equipment is deprecigted on a straight-line basis throughout the useful cconomic
life of the relevant asset. The useful economic life is determined by management at the time the asset is
ncquired and is based upen historical experience for similar assets, market conditions, and forecasts
regarding future events that could have an impact on useful life, including changes in technology.
Thetrefore, the actual useful economic life may differ from the estimated useful life. The Group periodically
evaluates sector and technology changes in order to update the remaining useful life. Such periodic updates
could result in a change during the depreciation period, and therefore also in the depreciation in future
periods.

Taxes

income taxes (both current income tax and deferred taxes) are determined in each country where the Group
operates in accordance with a prudent interpretation of the applicable tax regulations.

This process results in complex estimates in delermining taxable and deductible income and taxable
temporary differences between accounting and tax values. In particular, defetred tax assets are recognised
when it is probable that there will be future taxable income against which the temporary differences can be
utilised. The assessment of the recoverability of deferred tax assets, in relation to 1ax losses that can be used
in future perieds and deductible temporary differences, considers the estimated future taxable income on the
basis of a prudent tax planning,
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Goodwill

The impairment test on goodwill is carried out by comparing the carrying amount of cash-generating units
and their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is the higher of fair value,
less costs to sell, and its value in use. This complex valuation process entails the use of methods such as the
discounted cash flow method which uses assumptions to cstimate cash flows. The recoverable amount
depends significantly on the discount rate used in the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected
future cash flows and the growth rate used for the extrapolation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Management assess cvents and circumstances indicating that the Group may have an obligation resulting in
the ordinary course of business, Management applies its judgment in determining whether the recognition
criteria have been meet through assessing the probability of the obligation, making assumptions about timing
and amounls of future cash outflows expected to settle the obligation,
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

4. Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash
flow and [air value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. In particular, the Group is cxposed to
risks from movements in exchange rates, interest rates and market prices. The Group’s overnll risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and secks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s performance through ongoing operational and finance activities. The
management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management
framework.

Market Risk

7] Forcign gxchange risk

The Group operules internationally and is cxposed to foreign exchange risk arising when its business
transactions are in curtencies other than its functional currency. The main currencies to which the Group is
exposed are the US dollar (“USS"), the Pakistani Rupee (“PKR™), the Euro (“EUR™), DPRK Won ("KPW™}
and the Egyptian Pound (“EGP™).

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising in two scparate ways:

a) Foreign exchange operations risk

The Group entities predominantly execute their operating activities in their respective functional
currcncics. Some Group subsidiaries are, however, exposed to foreign currency risks in connection
with scheduled payments in currencies that are not their functional currencies. In general, this
relates to forcign currency denominated supplier payables duc fo capital expenditures and
receivables. The Group monitors the exposure to foreign currency risk arising from operating
activities and in peneral does not usc derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign exchange
exposure in relation to ordinary operating activities.

As of 31 December 2015, if the functional currencies had strengthened/(weakened) by 10% against
the USS, Euro, Egyptian pound, DPRK Won and Pakistani Rupee, with ail other variables held
constant, the translation of foreign currency receivables and payables would have resulted in an
increase/(decrease) of USS 3,497 thousand of net profit (2014: US$ 2,650 thousand of net loss).

b} Foreign exchange translation risk

Duc to its international presence, the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements are exposed to
forcign exchange Muctuations, as these affect the translation of subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies to the USS (the Group’s presentational currency). The currencies
concerned are mainly the Egyptian pound, the Pakigtani Rupec DPRK Won and the Euro. This
represents a translational risk rather than a financial risk given that these movements are posted
directly to equity in the cumulative translation reserve.

i} Price risk

The Group has limited exposure to equity instruments of other entities that are publicly traded.

iif) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Groups inferest rale risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings received al varisble interest rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group has not entered into any derivative {inancial instruments
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate risk.

All borrowings outstanding as of 31 December 2015 and 2014 (US$87,556 thousand; US$6,204 thousand)
are at a {ixed interest rate, ot a variable interest rate and interest rate free.

The Group analyses its intcrest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. The Group calculates the impact on profit
or loss of a defined interest rate shift. The same interest rate shift is used for all currencies.

The impact of a 1% interest rate shift would be a maximum increase/decrease in 2015 finance costs of
1SS 838 thousands (2014: US$ 59 thousand).
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY [IOLDING S.A E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Credit Risk

The Group considers that it is not exposed to major concentrations of credit risk in relation to trade
receivables. However, credit risk can arise in the event of non-performance of a counterparty, particularly in
relation to credit exposures for trade and other receivables, financial instruments and cash and cash
equivalents,

The credit risk 10 which the Group is exposed to be analysed by segment as follows:
i) Financial Serviee
In general, all costumers arc relating to the financial services of Beltone financial group as

follows: financial segment of Investment Banking, Asset Management, Brokerage and Other
financial Services,

fi) Investment property:
Substantially there is only onc significant international client.

iif) GSM
Substantially all customers in Lebanon are prepaid customers meaning that there is a low credit
risk associated with this GSM operation.

iv) Cahle

In general, cable customers are offered maximum payment terms of 30 days. Customers arc
checked for credit worthiness before offering credit terms.

v Other {including Media & I'gclmm'gm' classified as assets held for sale in 2015}
Customers’ credit worthiness is reviewed before credit terms are offered. Accounts receivable
are monitored and outstanding balances are followed up until the balance is received.

The Group tries to mitigate credit risk by adopting specific control procedures, including assessing the credit
waorthiness of the counterparty and limiting the Cxposure to any one counterparty. Accruals to the allowance
of doubtful reccivables amounted to US$ 36,555 thousand during 2015 (US$ 6,506 thousand for the period
ended 31 December 2014), See alse Note (22).

Credit risk relating 10 cash and cash equivalents and financial deposits arises from the risk that the
counterparty becomes insolvent and accordingly is unable to return the deposited funds or execute the
obligations under the derivative transactions as a result of the insolvency,

In gencral, the receivables and financial receivables included in financial assets relate to a variety of small
amounts due from a wide range of counterparties, therefore, the Group does not consider that it has a
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liguidity Risk

The Group monitors and mitigates liquidity risk arising from the uncertainty of cash inflows and outflows by
maintaining sufficient liquidity of cash balances. In general, liquidity risk is monitored at entity level
whereby each subsidiary is responsible for managing and monitoring its cash flows and rolling liquidity
reserve forecast in order (o ensure that it has sufficient commitied facilities to meet its liquidity needs.

Laws and regulations in certain countries, such as North Korea, in which the Group operates limit the
conversion of current cash balances into foreign currency. Given the nature of the business, Group
companics may have o make payments in foreign currencics {for example capital cxpenditures), the lack of
individual entity foreign currency reserves means that these companics are largely dependent on the
Company to make these payments on its behalf,
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY IHOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilitics into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date, The amounts disclosed in the tables
are the gross contractual, undiscounted cash flows including interest, charges and other fees.

Carrying Expected cash Less than 1 Between
fin thowusands of USS) amount NMows (*) vear 1 and S years
Liabilities
Liabilities to banks 84.564 85,264 6.454 78410
Finance leasc lability 113 242 T3 167
Other borrowings 2779 2,814 2267 547
Trade payables 21,800 21,800 21.800
As of 31 December 2015 109356 110,120 30,996 _ 79024

Carrying Expeeted cash Less than Between

{in thousands of US$) amount Mows (*) 1 year 1 and 5 years
Liabilities
Liabilitics to banks 2572 2,892 1,805 1,087
Finance lease liability 128 138 05 43
Other borrowings 3,498 3,556 3458 1,098
Trade payables 63611 61.611 63.611 -
As of 31 December 2014 69,809 10,197 67.969 2,228

* Expected cash flows are the gross contractual undiscounted cash flows including intcrest, charges and other fics.

Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

Other risks

Governmental authorisations

Certain future Group activities, including the GSM operations in Lebanon or the cable segment, arc
dependent on obtaining appropriate government authorisations. Should these authorisations not be obtained
or delayed, there could be an adverse impact on the future operations of the Group, such as a decrease in
revenues or penalty payments due to contractual counterparties.

Political and econoniic risk in emergine countrics

A significant amount of the Group's operations is conducted in Egypt, North Korea and Pakistan. The
operations of the Group depend on the market economy of the countries in which the subsidiaties or
associate operate. In particular, these markets are characterised by economies that are in various stages of
development or are undergoing restructuring. Therefore, the operaling results of the Group are affected by
the current and future economic and political developments in these countries. In particular, the results of’
operations could be unfavourably affected by changes in the political or governmental structures or
weaknesses in the local economies in the countrics where it operates. These changes could also have an
unfavourable impact on financial condition, performunce and business prospects.

Regulatory risk in emerging countries

Due to the nature of the legal and tax jurisdictions in the emerging countries where the Group operates, it is
possible that laws and regulations could be amended. This could include factors such as the current tendency
to withhold tax on the dividends of these subsidiaries, receiving excessive tax assessments, granting of relief
(o certain operations and practices relating to foreign currency exchange. These factors could have an
unfavourable effect on the financial activities of the Group and on the ability to receive funds from the
subsidiaries.
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] DECEMBER 2015

Revenue generated by the majority of the Group subsidiaries is expressed in local currency. The Group
expects to receive most of this revenue from its subsidiaries and therefore it relics on their ability to be able
to transfer funds. The regulations in the various countries, such as North Korea, where Koryolink operates
could reduce the ability to pay interest and dividends and to repay loans, credit instruments and securities
cxpressed in foreign currency through the transfer of currency. In addition, in some countries it could be
difficult to convert large amounts of foreign currency due to central bank regulations. The central banks may
amend regulations in the future and therefore the ability of the Company to receive funds from its
subsidiaries may change,

Classes of financial instrument

The tables below present the Groups financial assets and liabilities by category.

As of 31 December 2015 As of 31 December 2014

Loans and  Available it Loansand  Awvailable

recervablles  for sale Total Derivatives receivables  for sale Totul
(in thousumds of USS)
Other financial assets 6,228 12,620 18,848 146,720 588,785 6,189 741,694
Trade receivables 17,401 . 17.401 - 13,963 - 13,963
Other current asscts' 1,748 - 1,748 - 4,818 - 4,818
Cash and cash equivalents 202454 - 202,454 - 130,251 - [30,251
Total 227,831 12,620 241_1342 146,720 737817 6,189 890,726

! Excludes prepaid expenses, advances 1o suppliers, employee loans and assets from current tax as these da not meet the
definition of a financial asset.

As of 31 December 2_0]5 As of 31 December 24
Ohher financial Other financial
liabilitics at amortised Total liabilitics at amortiscd Tolal
{in thousunds of USS) cost cost
Borrowings 87.556 87,556 6,198 6,198
b
Oither non-current liabilities™ 1,677 1,677 4,406 4,406
Trade payable and other curremt liabilitics [ .. N 32,661 32,661 78,925 78,925
Tata) = 121,894 121,894 #9,529 49,529

2 Exeludes Prepaid iraffic and deferred inceine, as these do not meet the definition of a financial liability.

5. Segment reporting

The chiel operating decision-maker has been identified as the board of directors of the Company. The board
of directors reviews the Group's intemnal reporting in order to assess its performance and allocate resources,
mainly from a geographical perspective, of the mobile telecommunication business.

Pursuant to the decision to dispose of entitics previously included in the Media and Technology segment,
OTMT management has changed its intermal reporting as analysed by the chicf operating decisior-maker
and revised the reportable operating segments as follows:

*  Financial Service: relating to the financial services of Beltone financial group represented in the
group of different financial segment of Investment Banking, Assct Management, Brokerage and
Other financial Services.

* Investment praperty: investment propertics relate to real estate property the Group owns in Sae
Paolo, Brazil

*  GSM - Lebanon: relating to the management contract of the Lebanese mobile telecommunications
operator Alfa, which is owned by the Republic of Lebanon.

*  Cable: relating to the provision of direct broadband and high-speed conncctivity to telecom
operators, inlemet service providers and major corporations through submarine fibre optic cables.

3l
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

*  Other: includes Media & Technology (relating mainly to the provision of online advertising and
content to corporate customer, mobile value added services and software development and hosting
of corporate clients) and the Group’s equity investments and income and expenses related to
OTMT. In 2015, Media & Technology entities have been classified as assets held for sale and
discontinued operations.

The Group reports on operaling segments, which are independently managed. The chief operating decision-
maker assesses the performance of such operating segments based on:

* 1otal revenue;

¢ EBITDA, defined as profit for the period before income tax expense /(bencfit), impairment of
associate, share of profit/(loss) of investment in associates, foreign exchange gains /(loss), financial
expensc, financial income, disposal of non-current assets, impairment charges and depreciation and
amortisation; and

* segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property and
equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Revenue and EBITDA disclosure per segment

The following information is regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and is measured
consistently with that of the financial statements.

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Revenue Revenue
inter Inter
Total segment e from EBITDA Total scgment seument from EBITDA
revenue external revenue external
revenie revenue

customers customers
Invesiment Propeny 1,042 - 1,042 (1.973) - - - -
(iSM Lchanon 7,230 - 7230 3539 9,802 - 9,802 5412
Cable 27,530 - 17,530 3,238 24,996 - 24,996 2,941
Financial Services 1,608 - 1.608 1 - - - -
Other 3,08 I (2,7000 81 (23.255) 1,660 - 1.666 {20,083)
Total 40,49_1 (2,700) 37,91 (13,450) 36,464 - 36,464 (11,730)

Assets per segment

The following table illustrates assets for each reportable segment as they are regularly provided to the board
of directors.

As of 31 December 21)_]_5 As of 31 December 2014

fin thousands of USS) Fr:::;rty ln:n::l’ble lnvi;l::l?n ~ ]:‘r':p':nr:;' Total h:ﬁ':lﬂy l"'::g:’" Im'E:ll':?nls Tatal

equipment equipment
[nvestment property - . - 63,853 63,853 - - - -
Financial Service T3 42,394 - 43,107 - - - -
Cable 104.009 13,637 - - 117,646 126,301 21,084 - 147,385
Other ?.88!':‘: Ta "ﬁ.45! . 86,413 166,349 51,309 82,739 300,397
Total 112,608 56,107 78,451 63,853 k]| l,oi_9 292,650 72,393 82,739 447,782
Reconciliation of EBITDA to profit before income fax
{in thousands of USS) Year ¢nded 31 December 2015 Year ended 31 December 2014
EBITDA (18.450) {11,730)
Depreciation and amortisation (12,274) (3,890)
Imipairment charges (40.727) {56,871}
Disposal of non-current assels 157,053 (224)
Financial income (1355161 (47.932)
Financial expense (4,176) (2,350}
Foreign exchange gain /{loss) 5.490 {2.798)
Share of profit {loss) of cquity investmenls {586} {7.058)
Prafit before income tax (49,186) (132,853)
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Reconciliation of ussets allocated to total asscts

{in thousands of USS) As O 31 December 2015 As Of 31 Decomber 2014
Assels aliocated 31019 447,742
Other non current fnancial assels 8,030 703,689
Other non current assels 9.307 9144
Invealories 156 264
Trade receivables 17,401 13,963
Other current financial assets 10,818 38,005
Oiher current assets 14.872 19,550
Cash and cash equivalents 202,454 130,251
Assets held for sale ) - . 43,801
Total assets ' ST405T 1426449
Capital expenditure

The table below illustrates the capital cxpenditure incurred by cach segment for the year ended
31 December 2015 and the year ended 31 December 2014:

{in thousands of US$) o J;‘::’;‘::gms 1 IJ‘:.:;I:::-TOI‘I

Cable 24,427 21462
Other ! 2.901 4.565
Total 33,328 26,027

' Amounts in the “Other” segment includes capital expenditure attributable 10 Media and Technology entities, which have been
reclassified as asseis held for sale in 2014,

6. Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operation

6-1 Disposal of Subsidiary Related to Orascom Telecom Ventures S.A.E

Orascom Telecom, Media and Technology Holding S.A-E announced that the Board of Directors of
Orascom Telecom Ventures 8.A.E (subsidiary company) has agreed to scll some of its subsidiaries and their
subsidiary companies in a deal with an estimated total value of USS 19.5 million to one of the subsidiaries of

Accelero Capital Management Ltd. Company, taking into account that the cash consideration is
US$ 13.9 million,

The deal includes companics working in the ficlds of valuc-added mobile services, advertisements via the
internet, sofiware development and management of clectronic content. The deal was finalised during the first
quarter of 2015.

The following are the names of the subsidiary companics included in the deal and the Group’s percentages
of direct and indirect investment;

Direct and
indirect

Subsidiary companies Activity Country Investment

percentape
ARPU for Telecommunication Services S.AE ' Media and Technology Epypt 100.5%_
Egypt Call Communications § A Muedia and Technology LEgypt 99.98%
LinkDotNet KSA Media and Technology KSA 100,00%
LinkDotNet Media and Techinology UAE 100.00%
Link Online S.A L Medin and Technology Epypt 100.00%
Anab Finance Securities Brokerage Egypt 100.00%
Link Development S.A E. Media and Technology Egypt 99,80%
Link for Domain Registration S.A.E Media and Technology Egwpt 130.00¢%%
Connect Ads Media and Technology Egypt 100.00%
Otlob Company for restaurant reservations Media und Technology  Egype 100.00%
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECIHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

At the year end December 31, 2014 the fair value was re-estimated to be US§13,981 thousand. A Tair value
loss of US$9,499 thousands, relating to impairment in property, plant and equipment US$6,716 thousand
and in intangible assets US$2,783 thousand.

The following table provides a breakdown of assels and liabilities held for sale relating o Orascom Telecom
Ventures SAE.

{in thousands of US$) As of 31 December 2014
Book value before .
m.!ju.vfmcn{ LA CE

Property, plant and equipment 7.080 365
Intangible assets 3,745 962
Financial Assets 1,602 1,602
Inventories 29 29
Trade receivables 40,804 40,800
Other reccivables 7422 7421
Cash and cash equivalents 12,622 12,622
Tolal assels held for sale 73,300 63,801
Financial linbilitics 850 850
Employee benefits 3872 3872
Provisions 4,619 4,619
Deferred Tax 52 52
Tax libilities 602 602
Trade paynbles 39,825 39,825
Tatal liabilitles keld for sale 49,820 49,820
Total identifinhle nsscts on sale 13,480 13,981

The following is the revenues and the expenses related to the discontinued operations:

(in thotsunds of USS) Year cuded 31 December 2014

Revenuoe 92,107
Expenses (94,670)
Loss recognised on the re-measurement of assets of the dispesal group (9.499)
Loss from operating activities (12,062)
Income tax expense {1,262)
Luss from discontinued nperations {13,324)

6-2 Net (loss) / profit from discontinued operations - Koryolink

Loss and gain from discontinucd operations as of December 31, 2015 represented in losses from disposal of
Koryolink with a value of USS$ 477 million (December 31, 2014 gain from disposal of Koryolink with a
value of US$ 188 million). The Company’s investments in North Korea related primarily to the 75% holding
in the local telecom operator Koryolink. The accounting treatment has been modified during this period and
recognised as investment in associates instead of investment in subsidiarics. In the management's view, the
canirol over the Koryolink’s activity was lost as aforementioned in detail in Note (15-2).

Analysis of (loss) / profit from discontinued operations of Koryolink arc as follows:

(in thowsands of US$) Year ended 31 December  Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Revenue 246,951 344,383
Expenses {104,570} (97.952)
Peofit from aperating activities 142,381 246,431
Income tax expense (44,071) {58,748}
P'rofit from operating activities, net of tax fiicome 98,310 187,683
Loss on disposal (575.08%) -
(Loss) / profit from discontinucd operations (476,779} 187,683

4
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S§.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The loss on disposal has been determined as follows:
Carrying smount at

(i thousands of USS) disposal

Property and equipment 141,298
Intangible assels 44,886
Inventonies 127
Other current financial ussets 686,682
Other cutrent assets 1,958
Cash and cash equivalents 140,201
Tolal assets 1,015,152
Trade payables {53,363)
Non-controlling interests (204,859)
Other cuerent liabilitics (69,003}
Provisions (1.157)
Current income tax liabilitics and Differed 1ax (22,525)
Total linbility (350.907)
Net assets disposed of 664,245
Loss of Control

Investment and Current account 114,011
Loss on dispasal kefore recycling of forvign exchanpe (550,134)
Reeycling of Forcign exchange (24.993)
Lass on disposal (575,127

The subsidiary company’s financial statcments were tronslated at the date when control was lost on
September 30, 2015 by using the official exchange rate announced by the Banks operating in North Korea,
whereas determined by the Central Bank of North Korea, the absence of a free-floating currency cxchange
market and there is no indicators refers to the effect of the change on the Korean currency exchange market
on the company’s assets, accordingly, for the purpose of disposal of the company from combination and
according to TAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Forcign Exchange Rates”, the interim financial statements
for Koryolink at September 30, 2015 (the date when control was lost) were translated to US$ using the
official exchange rate announced by Central Bank of North Korean as this is the only cxchange rate
available for the subsidiary company,

7. Revenue

Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December

(in thousands of USS) 2015 M4
Interconnection trafTic 27,530 24,996
Management contract -Fees 7.611 11,468
Revenue form Financial services 1.608 -
Investinent Property Revenue 1,043 -
Total _ 37,91 36,464
8. Purchases and services
(in thousands of USS$) Year ende:o:’al ls De b Year end ;03] L December
Rental of local network, technical sites and other leases 6,755 5619
Purchases of goods and changes in inveniories 5.100 3.956
Band width cost 4075 k1 e
Consulting and professional services 2,449 1,958
Maintenance costs 2,103 1,227
Airfare 1,654 800
Advertising and promational services 464 982
Other service expenses 3,298 5.191
Total 25,898 23,445
is
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

9. Other cxpenses

(in thousands of USS)

Provisions for risks

Accruals for provisions ,writc downs and penaltics
Other operating cxpenses
Total

10. Personnel costs

(in thousands of USS)

Wages and salaries
Contractual bonuses
Pension costs

Social seeurity

Other personnel costs
Total

11.  Depreciation and Amortisation

fin thousands of USS)

Depreciation of tangible assets
Buildings

Plant and machinery

Cable system and equipment
Commercial and other tangible assots

Depreciation of Investment property
Buildings

Amortisation of intangible assets

License
Right of use
Other

Total

12.  Impairment of non-current assets

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
10,217 5,266
2875 5,511
130 611
13,822 11,388
Year ended 31 Year ended 31 December
December 2015 2014
14,686 12,836
1,127 350
351 260
350 488
£92 588
17,406 14,522
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2015 Beccmber 2014
309 336
6 -
9.804 2,869
445 421
EFal 5
195 169
1.190 95
2 S
12,274 3,890

Impairment charges of USS 41 million (2014: US$ 57 million) mainly relate to the main asset of MENA
Cable, a submarine cable which was impaired following an appraisal of the asset performed by the company,
which indicatcd that the expected recoverable value was less than the book value as of 31 December 2015.

13.  Business Combination

Beltone Financial Holding

On November 19, 2015, the Group launched a joint tender offer with Act Financial S.A.E.of 97.4%of
Beltone Group. The Group has acquired 81.3% of Beltone Financial Holding shares for a purchase
consideration of US$ 70 million. The acquisition resulted in o preliminary goodwill of US$ 43 million and
the final purchase price allocation will be completed within 12 months of the acquisition date. Through the
acquisition of Beltone Financial Holding the Group has entered business in the financial service sector.
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.AF.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The preliminary fair value of asscts and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition of Beltone
Financial Holding are as follows:

{in thousands of US$) Preliminary fair value
Current assets 39,409
Long 1erm asseis 5,663
Total assets 45,072
Current lisbilitics 12,472
Total liabilitics 12,472
The net assets of acquired 32,600
% acquired 81.30%
The share of the Group in net assets of acquired 26,504
Consideration in cash 69,551
The net goodwill resulted from acquisition 43,047

Accounting of non-controlling interests

The Group recognises non-controlling intercst in an acquired entity cither at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate sharc of the acquired entity’s nct identifiable assets, This decision is
made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. For the non-controlling interests in Beltone Financial Holding
acquired the Group elected to recognise non-controlling interests at its proportionate share of the acquired
net identifiable assets,

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of USS$ 1.6 million and net loss of USS 33 thousands to the
Group for the period from the acquisition date to December 31, 2015. If the acquisition had occurred on
January 1, 2015, consolidated pro-forma revenue and profit for the year ended December 31, 2015 would
have been US$ 8 million and USS .7 million respectively.

Acquisition related costs

Acquisition related costs of US$ 2 million have been charged to purchases and services in the consolidated
income statcment for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Victoire Group

On October 22, 2015 the Group acquired 100% of the shares in Victoire Investment Holding Cooperatie UA
{“Victoire Coop Holding™), a company registered in the Netherlands for a purchase consideration of US$ 58
million. This company owns, through subsidiaries, real cstate property in Brazil.

The preliminary fair value of assets and liabilitics recognised as a result of the acquisition of Victoire
Investment Holding Cooperative UA are as follows:

fin thousands of USS$) Preliminary fair value
Curremt assels 2,657

Long term assets 64,743

Total azsets 67,400

Current liabilitics 9,273

The nct asseis af acguived 58,127

The Group will complete the final purchase price allocation within 12 months of the acquisition date.
Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of USS T million and net loss of USS 3 million to the Group for
the period from the acquisition date 10 December 31, 2015. The business started operating substantially at
the acquisition date.

Acquisition related costs
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2015

Acquisition related costs of USS 2.4 million have been charged to purchases and services in the consolidaied
income statement for the year ended December 31, 2015.

14.  Net financing (costs) income

(in thousands of USE) I;’c:: 1';:::::&'5 2D cndczdoli]h UL 5
Fait value gains on derivative instrument {136,089) {48,733)
Interest income on deposils 529 Bl
Profit and retumns from Investment Funds ARREL A 44

Financial income {135,516} {47,932)
Interest expense on borrowings (1,374) {463)
Other interest expense and financial charges (2.802) (R04)
Impairment of financial assets L {1,083}
Financial expense {4,176} 12350}
Foreign exchange gain/ (loas) 5,490 {2,798)
Tatal (134,202) (53,080)

Financial income

Financial income includes the gain related to the exercise of ECMS option in 2015, Sce also Note (15, and
20} for an additional deseription of the derivative instruments,

Financial expense

Financial expense includes the impairment of other amounts paid in relation fo the Group's investment in
North Korea due to uncertainties regarding its recoverability.

15. Investment in nssociates

Investment in associates primarily relate to the investment in the telecommunication operator in North Korea
(Cheo Technology Karyolink) as of December 31, 2015. As of December 31, 2014, investment in associates
included the Egyptian Company for Mobile Scrvices S.A.E. (“ECMS”), a mobile telecommunication
operator in Egypt which provides a range of prepaid and post-paid voice and data telecommunication
services under the brand name of Mobinil. Such investment was sold during the first months of 2015,

The following table provides a breakdown of investments in associates:

Company Country  Ownershp 3 (20 05 3y Dcc:ﬁ:ir 2014
MT Telecom SCRL Belgium 28.75% - 7,840
Egyptian Company For Mobile Services Egypt 5.00% - 74,899
Cheo Technology-Koryolink DPFRK 75.00% 78,369 -
Electronic Fund Administration Services 20.60% 82 -
Axes Holding company USA 33.90% - -
78,451 82,739

The following table illustrates the detailed movement of investments in associates.

(in thousands of USS) 08 04
As of | Jannary 82,739 92,367
Change in Scope 79,643 -
Share of income of associate before impairment 29.740 (7.058)
Impeirnent (30,326} -
Share of loss of associate (586) (7,058}
Share of loss recognised directly equity of associates (186)
Sale (209) -
Disposal (Including voting nghts compensation) (75.932) -
Exchange differences (7,018) (2.570)
As of 31 December 78,451 82,734
k1



|

4 & a4

a4 A A

al A M

) Y OO O e s
W W WU

IL‘;'

s

ﬂ

B oW

qﬁqHH_EHHqH_H—'IFlHHHHHIHHHN!—_EH*N““’V_’HF

h a lm

rEmEEm

g

ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(15-1) Egyptian Company for Mobil Services (ECMS)

On February 22, 2015 the Board of Directors of the Company agreed on the sale of all the Company’s shares
in the Egyptian Company for Mobile Services (ECMS) amounting to 5,000,000 shares represeating 5% of
the capital of the Egyptian Company for Mabile Services (ECMS), in addition to 28,750,000 shares of
potential voting rights in MT Telecom SCRL, the selling price was agreed also on the basis of the call option
notice received from Orange SA Company (previously France Telecom) for a total price of Euro
209,632,133, which represents the present value for this option during the announced and agreed upon
cxercise windows for the years 2016 and 2017,

Based on negotiations with Orange S.A. Company, the Company's sclling price of its investment in the
Egyptian Company for Mobile Services (ECMS), amounted to Euro 163,785,940 (with an approximaie
value amounting to Eure 32,76 per share), whereas the Company’s selling price of its investment in MT
Telecom SCRL, amounted to Euro 45,846,193 (with an approximate value amounting to Euro 1.59 per
share). The total consideration received in connection with the disposal of ECMS amounted to US$S 235
million,

This deal also closes the call option according to the amended and restated agreement dated
April 11, 2012.The price of the share of the Egyptian Company for Mobile Services (ECMS), according to
the deal, is equivalent to EGP 280.7 per share, with a total value amounted 1o EGP 1,403,500,000. Whereas
the price of the potential voting right in MT Telecom SCRL is equivalent to EGP 13.62 per potential voting
right, with a total amount of EGP 391,575,000. [n this context the Company derecognised the previously
recognised fair value of derivative instruments, recording a fair value less od US$ 136 million and accounted
for a gain on disposal of its investments in MT Telecom SCRL and ECMS of US$ 157 million.

During 2014 Group management identified impairment indicators that triggered an impairment test. The
recoverable amount identified for ECMS was below its carrying amount and resulted in an impairment
charge of US$ 13,556 thousand.

The tables below sets forth-summary financiat information of the associate.
As ol 31 December2014

Curreat
Cash and cash equivalents 38,474
Other current asscts (excluding cash) 320487
Totzl current assels 358,961
Current financial liabilitics (excluding trade and other payables) (175,685)
Cther current liabilities {including wade and other payables) (863.624)
Total current linbilities (1,039,309}
Non-current
Non-current asscts 1,726,959
Non-cumrent financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables) (734,108)
Other non-current liabilitics (including trade and other payables) {121,121
Total non-current liabilities {855.229)
Net asscis 191,382
Year ended

31 December 2014
Revenue 1,542,038
Depreciation and Amortisation {369,500)
Interest income 5,634
Interest expease (143,320)
Loss from continuing operations (56,419)
Income tax expensce (2,349)
Post tax loss from continuing operations (58,768)
Otber comprehensive income -
Tatal comprehensive income (58.768)
39
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] DECEMBER 2015

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associate ECMS (and

not the Company’s share in the investment).

(in thousands of USS)

Net ussets of associale

Proportion of the Group's ownership intcrest in ECMS
Goodwill

Other purchase price adjustments

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in ECMS

{15-2) Koryolink
The tables below sets forth-summary financial information of the associate.

Summarised balance sieet
{in thousands of US$)

Current

Cash and cashi equivalents

Other cument assets {excluding cash)
Total current assets

Curremt financial lighilities {excluding trade and other payables)

Other comrent liabilities ( including trade and ofber payables)

Tatai current Habilities
Non-current

Non-current assets

Non-current financial liabilities {excluding trade and other payables)

Other non-current linbilitics (including trade and other payables)

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

Revenue

Costof Revenue

Other Expenses

Profit or {loss) from coniinuing operations
Income tax expense

Post tax prafit (loss) from conflauing eperations
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

The Company's investments in Neorth Korea related pamarily to the 75

As aof 31 December
2014

191,382
5%
42,436
30,734

82,739

As of December 31, 2015

§80,722
3,658

884,330

(14,001)

(163,860}

(179,871)

153,723

858,232

Year ended 31
December 2015

83,209

(15,823)

(14.608)

52,778

(13,195)

39,583

39,583

% hoiding in the local telecom

operator Koryolink. The accounting treatment has been modified during this year through recognizing it as
an investment in associates instead of investment in subsidiaries, Thus in light of the increase of the
restrictions, financial and operating difficulties facing Koryolink due to the internationa) sanction imposed
by the international community including the United States, the European Union and the United Nations,

These sanctions have the effect of restricting financial transactions and the import and export of goods and
services, including goods and services required to operate, maintain ond develop mobile networks and
Increase of long term restrictions which affect the ability to transfer of the subsidiary’s profits to the Holding
Company, the absence of a free-floating currency exchange market in North Korea, whereas the Group’s
management has no exchange rate available other than the official exchange rate announced by the Central
Bank of North Korea, other than launching a competing local telecom operator wholly owned by the North

Karean Government,

4l
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The group’s management seek 1o find solutions Tor the aforementioned and its effect through negotiations
with the Korean side including merging Koryolink with the second lacal telecom operator, wholly owned by
the North Korean Government. According to the Group’s management, there is an initial consent from the
Korean party regarding merger. This may lead to the presence of possible future solutions that would remove
some of the obstacles. In light of the change in the results of those negotiations during the current period
which indicates a disagreement from the Korcan side to grant the management the rights te control in casc of
the merger and duc to the increase in aforementioned restrictions during the current period, the group’s
management decided that it lost control on the Koryolink's activities according to the requirements of the
IAS 27, which led to modify the accounting treatment to be investment in associates instead of investment in
subsidiarics. The fair value of the investment has been determined based on independent valuator report.

The subsidiary’s net assets was translated as of September 30, 2015 based on the official exchange rate
announced by the Central Bank of North Korean, whereas the Group's management has no exchange rate
available other than the officinl exchange rate announced by the Central Bank of North Korea, which led to
losses from the modification in the accounting treatiment amounted to US$ 476,779 thousand included in
losses from discontinued operations in the income statement Note (6-2).

16. Income tax expense

(in thousands of USS) e endego:‘]ls December Year “n""g'?] L December

Current tax expense 12,635 3772
Deferred tax liahilitics {(expenses) 1,763 470
Total 14,398 4,242

The main increase due Lo the taxes on capital gains related to exercise of ECMS aption.

17.  Property and equipment

Commereial
Cable
Land and Plant ond and other Assets under
(in thousands of USS) system nnd Total
Buildings  machinery tangible Construction
equipment
L _assels
Cont 11,369 206,968 292,46 29,368 24,437 564,228
Acennndated depreciation and inpairment f1.36 ?) (82.762) (171.930) (13,887} (1.632) (271,578)
Net book value ax of | Jamury 2005 10,002 124,206 120,156 15,481 22,805 292,650
Additions 72 5621 378 4,653 3172 33,89
Change in the scope of consolidution - {115,028) - (13.542) {12,138)  (140,708)
Disposuls 93) - - (252) (75) (420)
Currency transiation differences {648) {3,265) {1.068) (456) (1,042) {6,479)
Reclassifications . 8,431 . 55 {4,486) -
Impairment loss - - (32,994) - (264) (33,258)
Depreciation (309) {19.965) (5,804) {2,995) - (33.073)
Net book value us of 31 December 2015 9,024 - 76,668 2944 23972 112,608
Cost 10,540 8 200.977 7.852 25826 335,203
Accumnlated depreciation and impairment (1.516) {8 1214,309) (4.908) {1,854} {222.595)

a1



A W OW K W W

HHHH"!HHHH"H"H”H"H"H“HFH'H!HI

N R .

A X 4

Al K A A A

WOl A e A A A a & ROR W W

i |

- A A

A = &

ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(in thousunds of USE) ll;:'l'l:: ;:' ':;: :::‘CTI :::; sy::r: l: nd C: ::In;'l:ll;z?l é::lillsr::::l:l‘: Total
equipment  tangible assets

Cost 12,984 214,201 29852 33,260 288,461 571,758
Aceuntbated depreciation and impainnent {1 186) 70.727) {7,654) (14,900) (105,9168) (200,588
Net haok valne as of 1 January 2014 11,598 143,474 22,198 18,360 175,545 37,175
Additions 52 22014 1,982 5307 4,676 34,131
Disposals (2) - (69) (307 (378)
Depreciation (403) {27,943) (2,869) {4,728) - {35,943)
Impairment charges (55,239) (1,632)  (56871)
Exchange differences (272} (9.684) 706 (1,090) (2,060)  (12,400)
Assets held for sale (954) (3,743) (2,348) (35 (7,080)
lr:)l;:;i‘r::::ig;tmnsrcrrcd from prajects ynder . ; 153,382 . (153.382) ;
Reclassifications {In {12) ) 40 - 16
Net book value as of 31 December 2014 10,002 124,206 120,156 15,481 22,805 292,650
Cast 11,369 205,968 292,086 29,368 24,437 564,228
Accimudated depreciationt and impairment 1,367) {82,762) (171,930} (13.887} (1.632) (271,578

Additions to property and equipment mainly relate to cell site investments and assets under construction
relating to new base stations in North Koren, cable system and equipment. These investments are mainly
driven by the expansion of the business, increased capacity and the change in GSM technology.

Note that 2015 additions had for a significant portion already becn settled through advance payments as of

31 December 2014,

During the year Trans World Associates have been approved for credit facilities by PKR 3,200 Million
(equivalent to US$ 31 Million) for the cxpansion in marine cables SMWS3, it pledged by amount of
PKR 4,267 Million (equivalent 1o EGP 41 Million) from Company’s assets except for land and buildings.

18. Intangible assets

(in thousands of USS}

Cost

Accumnnifated amortisation and impairment
Net book value as of 1 January 2015
Additions

Amortisation

Impairment loss

Disposals

Change in the scope of consolidation
Reclassifications

Assets held for sale

Exchange differences

Net book value as of 31 December 2015
Cast

Accumdated amortisation and impairment

License Goodwill  Right of use Other Total

- 64,665 1,833 26,000 1,794 88,292

(14.612) {1,132 93) ) {15.899)
50,053 701 19,905 1,734 7;2,393 I

e 353 2 1424

{2,234) (1,190) {2} {3.426)

. {7.529) - (7,529)

(242) {242}

(#3444 43,046 - {1,438) (1,840}

1 - (L)) -

(3.916) (713) - (44) (4.673)

525 43,034 12,539 9 56,107

L240 44,068 21,353 7i 66,732

715) (1034) {8,814 (62) 10.625)



v

Emre

L o 1 o

B
|

W

A

1t

|

11 11 if k1 b% O BR ORE ORI ORI

IR IR e I I I I Iy

A A A A g

i

A W A

]

I

A WA KA

s la la la @& & & & lal A W A A A W

ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING §.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Right of

fin thonsands of USS) Licensc Goadwil) use' Other Total
Cust 69537 6,537 - 3,043 79,117
Accumudated amortisation and impairment (13.085} (2.663) - {187) (16.135)
Net book value os of T January 2014 56,452 3874 - 1,656 62,982
Additions 570 . 20,000 5 20,575
Amortisation (3477 - (95) (347) {3,919)
Impairment loss . (1,841) . - (1,891)
Reclassilications “1) - . &bl {19)
Assets held lor sale (962) (1,190) - {450) (2,602)
Exchange differences (2.489) 92) - {152) {2,733)
Net book value as of 31 December 2014 _50,053 701 19,905 1,734 72,393
Cost 44,665 1833 20,000 1.794 88,292
Ae lated amortisation aud impairmen (14.612) (1132 {95) (60 (15,899
' Relates 1o an agreement besween MenaCuble and Telecom Egypl fur the use uf'a fibre cable in Egypt.
The following table provides an analysis of goedwill by segment reporting;

T e e 2014
(in thousands of USS) Other Cable Fi::::::‘l Tota) Other Cable Total
As of | January . 701 - 701 317 701 1874
Cust 1132 ror . 1,833 5836 741 6,537
Accemsdated impairnent (1,132) - - (1,132} (2,663} - (2,663)
Additions - 43,046 43,046 {1,891) - (1.891)
[mpainnent - - - - (1,190) - (1,190)
Exchange differences ) {713) (713) 92) - {92)
As of 31 December . 701 42333 43,034 s 701 701
Cost 1132 Ml 42333 44,166 1132 Tt 1,833
Accumnidated impairment (1.132) - - (LI3Y {1,132} - (1,132)

19, Investment Property

The property investment balance comprises the value of seven floors which are owned by Victoire in Brazil.
The property invesiment is carried at its historical cost, as its present value does not significantly differ from
its cost at the date of the balance sheet.

The fair value attributed 1o the real estate during the preliminary purchase price allocation performed in
conneetion with the business combination at the end of 2015 is used as a proxy for fair value as of
31 December 2015. The fair value of the investment propertics is considered to be the value of the individual
assets on the reporting date, assuming that they were to be sold in arms-length transactions between market
operators at market conditions. The fair value of investment properties is measured by taking into
consideration market parameters at the balance sheet date, using valuation techniques widely accepted in the
financial business environment (Level 2).

(in thousands of USS) Total

Cost

As at Janvary 1, 2015 -
Change in the scope of consolidation-In coming 65,447
Currency translation differences (1.2R2)
As of 31 December 2015 64,165

Accumulgted Depreciation and Impairmeny
As at January 1, 2015

Charge for the year 3z

Currency translaticn differences (1)
As af 31 December 2015 312
Net book value as of December 31, 2015 63,853
43
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S8.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The (air value of investment properly does not change matenially from the cost as of 31 December 2015.
Amounts recognised for investment properties are recorded in the consolidated income statement within the
line items Investment Property Revenue:

Year ended
(in thousands of US$) 3 December 2035
Rental income 183
Direct operating expenscs from property that generated rental income 235
W3

Direct operting expenses from property that did not generate rental income

Leasing arrangement

A substantial part of the investment propertics are leased to tenants under long-term operating leases with
rentals payable (monthly - in advance or in arrcars). Minimum lease payments receivable on leascs of
investment propertics are as follows:

{in thovsands of USS) As of 31 December 2015
Within one year Jo78
Later than one year but not Jater than 5 years 12310

Later than 5 years

20. Other financial assels
(in thousands of USS) As of 31 December 2015 As of 31 December 2014
Non-current Current Total  Non-current Current  Total
Finaneial receivables 192 294 486 42 2,746 2,788
Derivative financial instraments . . . 12575 34,145 14672
Deposils 5.742 5,742 584,883 Lll4  S8599
Financial asscts available for sale -at cost 7.293 - 1,293 6,189 - 6,189
Financial assets available for sale -at fair value 545 4,782 5327 L - -
Total 5030 10818 18,848 703,689  3m005 16
Derivatives

Call / Put options with Orange SA

Represents the fair value of the put-option by which the Company can sell its stake in the Egyptian
Company for Mobile Services including the voting rights to Qrange SA.

According to the amended and restated sharcholders agreement between the Company and Orange SA dated
11 April 2012, and as disclosed in Note (15), the amended agreement states that Orange SA has the option to
call all (but not less than alf) of the Company’s remaining direct stake in Egyptian Company for Mobile
Scrvices - ECMS and in MT Telecom, which are reported in the consolidated financial statements as
investments in associates with direct ownership interest of 5% and 28.75% respectively. This option is
exercisable during a January-February exercise period in cach year from 2014 to 2017, ranging from EGP
243.5 to 296 (Euro 30.55 to Euro 37.14) ECMS share.

The agreement also provides that the Company has the option to put 1.67% per annum of its direct interest in
the ECMS over a three-year period from 2015 to 2017 subject to the trading rules of the Egyptian Stock
Exchange - EGX and the applicable law.

This option is exercisable in January-February of each such year at accreting prices determined based on the
date of exercise ranging from EGP 268.5 to 296 (Euro 33.68 in 2015 to Euro 37.14) in 2017 per ECMS
share.

The fair value of both the put and call options is determined by an independent appraisal, which stated that
the fair value of the asset to the company as at 31 December 2014 amounted 1o US$ 147 million (2013: USS
201 million).
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

During the current year, a portion of the Holding Company’s right in excrcising the put option referred io
above in each of January and February 2015 was classified as a current asset with an amount of US$ 34
million based on the evaluation performed by the independent valuator.

In February 2015, Orange SA exercised its call option (sce further Note (35) ‘Subscquent events' for further
details).

Deposits

As of 31 December 2015 deposits amounting to US$ 5,742 thousand (31 December 2014; USS 585,997
thousand) arc pledged or blocked as security against related bank borrowings or others commiitments related
to 1ssued LGS and outstanding loan requirements. Deposits as of 31 December 2014 are relating to cash held
in North Korea in local currency which is subject to restrictions on use for cerfain operating and capital
expenses in local currency only. The funds cannot be converted into foreign cutrencies and cannot be
repatriated overscas,

The following table shows the ageing analysis of financial receivables and long-term deposits:

As of Asof
(in thousands of USS) . 3_[ December 2015 31 December 2014
Deposits rf::‘:z‘:;i Deposits ri’:::z‘;’;i
Not past due a0 < 585,997 2,788
Past due 0-30 days : . - -
Past due 31-120 days z 5 -
Past due 121-150 days : - = -
Past due more than 150 days 241 : =
Total 5,741 EL) 585,997 2,788
Financial assets available for sale -At Cost
As of 31 December Asof 31

(in thousands af USS) 2015 December 2014
Smart Village 5645 6,189
Misr for Central Clearing Depository and Registry 986 -
Guarantee Settlement Fund 648 -
El Arabi for Invesiment 25 -
MENA Capital 183 -
NRG for trade & distribution 150 -
(Less): Impairment loss of available for sale investments (344) -

7,293 6,189

Total

Smart Village Company is an Egyptian company with offices in Giza, which establishes and manages a
branded chain of technology cluster and business parks located in Giza as well as variety of other products
and services.

The above invesiments are stated at cost as they represent unlisted securities that do not have quoted markel
prices and its fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets available for sale -At Fair Value

As of As of
(in thousunds of USS) 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
EGX 30 545
Treasury Bonds 4,782
Tota} 5327 -
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY 1HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

21. Deferred taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
(ax asscts and liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes due to
the same tax authority.

The movement in deferred income tax liabilitics is as follows:

As of Asof

fint thousamis of USS) 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

As of Janvary 1, {12,775) {13,094)
Exchange differences 459 608
Change in the scope of consolidation out going 8.239 -
Held for sale - 52
Incame statement charye (3,966) {243
Reclassification = (98)
As of December 31, (8,043) {12,175)

A breakdown of the movement in deferred tax linbilities is provided in the tables below:

Depreciation and Unremitted

(in thousands of USS) amortisation earnings S Lo

As of | Juouary, 2015 5,262 8,458 (945) 12,775

Charged / (credited) to the income statement (555) 2,260 2320 3.965

Change in the scope of consolidation out going . (8.239) - {8,239)

Exchange differences {2062) (252) 4) {458)

As of December 31, 2015 4,505 1,167 1371 8,043
D'-'P'-'::;ﬁnﬂ L LTI Other Total

{in thowsands of USS} amortisation carnings

As of 1 January 2014 (2,192) 10,374 4912 13,094

Charged / (credited) to the income statement 7.539 (L2410 {6,056) 242

Exchonge differences {i3n {675) 297 (509)

Classified as non-current liabilities held for sale (52} - - (52)

As of 31 December 2014 5,164 8,458 (847) 12,775

Generally, the Group does not recognise deferred tax assets for temporary differences related to accruals for
provisions, duc to uncertainties in connection with the tax treatment of such expenses, as they might be
challenged by local tax authorities.

No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiarics, branches and assaciates, where the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foresceable
future,

Management believes that there are no differences between the tax base and the accounting base of assets
and liabilities recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiary at the date of the consolidated financial
statements, accordingly no deferred tax assets or liabilities have been recognised.

Should additional information arise in future periods resulting in differences between the tax base and
accounting base of recorded assets and liabilitics in the financial statements as at 31 December 2015,
Management will reassess its estimate in a way that might result in the recognition of deferred taxes related
to those assets and liabilities.
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2%, Trade reccivables
As of Asol

{in thousands of USS} 31 December 2015 31 December 2004
Receivables due from customers 24,732 18,637
Receivables due from iclephone operators 34,265 -
Other trade receivables 237 247
Allowanee lor doubtfisl receivables (41.833) {4,921)
Total 17.401 13,963

The following table shows the movement in the allowance for doubtful receivables:

{in thousands of LS5 P E 2014

As of | January 4,921 236
Exchange differences (960) (158)
Additions (allowances recognised as an expensc) 36,555 6,506
Change i the scope of consolidation 1,651 -
Assets held for sale - (6,787
Lise {992) (1.779)
Reclassilications 6i8 97
As ol 31 December 41,833 4,921

The following table shows the ageing analysis of trade receivables as of 31 December 2015 and 2014, net of
the relevant allowance for doubtful receivables:

As of 31 December  As of 31 December

(in thousands of USS) — il

Not past due 12,285 10,418
Past due 0-30 days 1,733 1,296
Past due 31120 days 2.148 1,123
Past due 121 - 150 days 159 147
PPast due more than 150 days 1.676 979
Trade receivables 17,401 13,963

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the receivable. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.

23 Other assets

(i thousands of USS) As of 31 December 2015 As of 31 December 2014
Non-current Current Total Non-current Current Taotal

Prepaid expenses 9,307 4.82) 14,128 9,144 3,363 13,007
Advances to supplicrs - 429 1,429 - 4473 4473
Employee loans - 32 352 - - -
Assets from current tax . 6,522 6,522 - 6,396 6,3%6
Other non-trade receivables - 1.748 1,748 - 4818 4,818
Total .07 14,872 24,179 2,144 19,550 28,694

The following table shows the movement in the allowance for doubtful current assets:

{in thousands of US$) o4

As of | Jonuary 1,282
Exchange differences (104)
Additions (allowances recognised 83 on expense) 104
Usc {368)

Asscts held for sale (914)
Reclassifications -

As of 31 December -

There are no movements in the allowance for doubtful for 2015.
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

24.  Cash and balances at banks

{ in thonsands of USS)
Bank accounts and Deposits
Cash on hand

Investments at fair value through profit or loss, mutual fund cedificales

Total

25.  Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

Share capital

As of 31 Decembc_r_gl_ll__s___

As of 31 December 2014

201.64% 129,752
434 499
370 -
202454 130,251

On 29 November 2011, the Company was incorporated with an authorised and issucd share capital
amounting to EGP 2,203,190,060 distributed over 5,245,690,620 shares, each with a nominal value of

EGP 0.42.

Non-distributable earnings

Retained camnings include an amount of US$ 1,180 thousand as of December 2015 comparing to US$ 34,487
thousand as of December 2014, which is not available for distribution representing a legal and special

reserves at the subsidiaries level.

26. Borrowings

" As of 31 December 2015

As of 31 December 2004

Non-
fin thousands of USY) Current  Non-current Total _Current current Total
Liabilities 10 banks 8,223 76,341 84 564 1,577 995 2572
Finance leasc liability 60 153 213 92 36 128
Other borrowings 2,247 532 2,179 2430 1,068 3,498
Total 10,530 77,026 87.556 4,099 2,099 6,198

Liabilities due to banks

Liabilitics due to banks sre detailed in Appendix B - “Liabilitics dve 1o banks”,

(in thouseands of USS) within oneyear  1-2years 2-3years  3-4 years 4-Svears _ Over S years Tatal

Liabilines to banks 8223 - 31899 37,237 29475 5,730 R4, 564
Finance lcase lhabtlity 60 61 52 38 213
Other borrowings 2,247 332 > : 2,179
As of 31 December 2015 10,530 595 3,951 37,275 19.475 5,730 87,556
Liabilities 10 banks 1,577 995 - - - - 2,572
Finance lease Liability 92 18 18 - - 128
Other borrowings 2430 539 529 - - = 3498
As of 3t December 2014 4.099 1,552 547 - - - 4,198

Finance lease liabilitics

(in thousands of USS)

Gross finance lease Liabilities - minimum lease payments
Within ane year

Between 1-5 years

Over 5 years

Future finonce charges on finance leases

Present value of finance lease liabilities

The present value of finance lease Tiabilities is as follows:

Within one year
Between 1-5 years
Alter 5 years
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As of 31 December 2015

As of 31 December 2014

75 99
167 39
242 138
(29 {1m
213 128

0 92
153 36
213 128
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
Other Borrowings
Other borrowings mainly include loans from non-controlling shareholders in subsidiaries. The detail of
“Other borrowings” is included in Appendix B — “Other borrowings™.

Currency Information of current and non-current borrowings

The [ollowing table provides the breakdown of total borrowings by currency of issuc:

; ) Epyption Pakistan
(in thousands of US$) uss Pound Rupee Others Toual
As of 31 December 2015 36,119 31504 18,933 - 87,556
As of 31 December 2004 3,308 190 2,700 - 6,198

Financial liabilities include secured liabilities of US$ 2,812 thousand as of 31 December 2015 comparing to
USS$ 2,572 thousand as of 31 December 2014. In general, the financial liabilities are secured on property and
equipment of the relevant subsidiary, pledged shares and receivables.

The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not
significant. The fair value of non-current berrowings, calculated as cash flows discounted suing a current
borrowing rate, approximates the carrying value due to the fact that all non-current borrowings are at
varinble interest rate and management assumes that conditions originally negotiated, such as spread, would
still be the same compared to current market conditions. Fair values are within level 2 of the fair value
hicrarchy.

27. Trade payables and other linbilities

As of 31 December 2015 As of 31 December 2014

(in thunsands of USS) Current Non-current Total  Current Non-current Toial
Trade Pavables EiE
Capital expenditure payables 321 - 3 32,378 - 32,378
Trade payables due 1o supplicrs 7.694 7.694 27,443 . 27,443
Customers credit balance 10,907 . 10,907 - - -
Other rade payables | 2878 . 2,878 3,790 - 3,790
Total 21,800 21.800 63,611 - 63,611
Other current liabilitics === = TR

Prepaid traffic and deferred income 744 LR L 9.238 71.792 4,224 76,016
Due to local authorities 5,079 5,079 2706 - 2706
Personnel payables 1,078 - 1.078 1,226 - 1,226
Other credit balances 4,704 1,677 6.381 11,382 4,406 15,788
Total 11,605 10,171 21,776 87,106 8,630 95,736
Tetal ; 33405 10,171 43,576 150,717 8,630 159,347
28. Provisions

{in thousands of USS) 2015 2014

As of 1 Junwary 76,464 76,658
Additions 10217 11,487
Disposals . (4,380}
Cutrency translation differences (6,585) (2,500}
Provision used - (182)
Change in scope (768} 7
Classified a5 non-current liabilnies held for sale (265) {4,619)
As of 31 December 79,063 76,464
40
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S5.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

29. Earnings per share

Buasic and dituted

Basic eamings per share s calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. For the purposes of the
carnings per share calculation, it has been assumed that the number of issued shares at the date of
incorporation (5,245,690 thousand) had been outstanding during the periods

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, During the period covered by the
report, the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares and as such diluied and basic
earnings per sharc from continuing operations and from discontinued operations are equal.

Continued operation Discontinucd operation

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

3-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dee-14
Profit (loss) attributable 10 equity &
halders of the Company (64:873) (139,187) L 174,350
Weighted average number of shares (in A
thousands of shares) 5.245.090 5,245,690 5.245.650 5,245,690
Earnings (loss) per share - basic and 0.0122) (0.0265) (0,0968) 0.0332

diluted (in USS)

30. Subsidiaries

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights in the
subsidiary underiakings held directly by the Company do not differ from the proportion of ordinary shares
held. The Company does not have any sharcholdings in preference share of subsidiaries included in the
Group.

Significant restrictions
Cash and short-term deposits of US$ 585 million arc held in Nonh Korea and are subject to local exchange

control regulations. These local exchange control regulations provide for certain restrictions on exporting
capital from the country.

Summarised financial information of non-wholly owned subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests.

Summarised balunce sheet

Trans World Associntes (Pvt) Ltd CHEO Technology JV Company
As af 31 December As of 31 December

(in thousands of USS) s 2014 w15 2014

Current

Current assets 13.928 16,058 - 112,304
Currcat liabilities (15.020) (16,642) . (164830
Total current net asteis (1,092) (584} - (52,533
P T 31,363 51410 . 765974
Not-current liobilities {10.567) 27,707} : -
Total non-currcnt net assets 20,796 23,703 y 765,974
Ned nssets 19,704 13,119 - T13441

0
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Summarised income statement

Trans World Associates (Pvt) Ltd  CHEO Technology JV Company

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
3t December 31 December 31 December 31 December
(i thowsands of USS) W 2014 015 2014
Revenue 20,714 23,646 - 344,383
Profit (loss) helofe income (a% 5192 3778 - 232,338
Income 1x expense (1765} (22 o (38,757)
Pust tax profit (loss) [rom continuing operatinns 3427 3,567 173,581
Other comprehensive income (210 (3.830) ) (‘.‘.9'223)
Tatal comprehenstve income S 17 (263) o - 124,358
Tatal comprehensive income allocated 1o non-controlling 1,576 (129) ) 31,000

interests

Suntmarised cash flows
Trans World Associates (Pvt) Ltd  CHEO Technology JV Company

Year ended
31 December

Year ended 31 Year ended 31 Year ended 31

fin thousands of USS) December 2015 December 2014 December 2015 2014
Cash flows gencrated from (used in) operating activitics 6,423 9,049 - 270,101
Interest paid {1.043)

Income tax paid {1.443) {1,895) - {43,374)
Net cash generated from (used in) operating activitics 3.937 7154 - 226,727
Net cash used in investing activitics (21.847) {3,087) - {174,981)
Net cash used in financing activitics 17.207 {5,109) -
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents {703) {1,042) - 51,746
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the penod 4,854 5,521 - 54,617
Exchange gains (losses) on cash and cash equivalents (289) 75 - (722)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of ithe period . 3862 4,854 - 105,641

The above information is the amount before intercompany eliminations.

31 Commitments

The commitments as of 31 December 2015 and 2014 are provided in the table below:

As of As of
(i thausands of USS) 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Purchase of property and equipment 31,068 2447
Others- 23,109 27,932
Total 54,177 30,379

Other capital commitments arisc from the commitment to acquire items of fixed assets related to the marine
cables under construction by Middle East and North Africa for Sea Cables Company (subsidiary).
32, Related party transactions

Transactions with subsidiaries, associates, with the Parent Company and its subsidiaries and other related
parties arc not considered atypical or unusual, as they fall within the Group’s normal course of business and
are conducted under market conditions that would be performed by independent third parties.

3
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.A.E.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The main related party transactions are summarised as follows:

(i thousands of USS)

OTMT

Associate
ECMS

Others

QOrascom Solutions

Korean Post and Telecommunication
Company

Orastar LTD

Dr, Omar Zawawy {sharcholder of a
subsidiary)

Contrack facility management

Tatal

Year ended
31 December 2015

Yeur ended

31 Decembier 2014

S Purchase of services - Purchase of
s and goods AT services and goods
369 63 502 72
8.544
1 - 164
19151 - 30,353
2h - 40
T . 10
& - 7
165 19,563 2,046 30,646

Revenues in last year with ECMS mainly relate to management fecs for services rendered by the Company.

(in thousamlis of USS)

OTMT

Assoclale

ECMS

Dithers

Korean Post and Telecommunication
Compaony = KPTC

LDN

Orastar LTD

Dr. Omar Zawawy (sharcholder of a «
subsidiary)

E-management services company in the
arca of investment funds

Beltone pariners for investment and trade
Belton Mena Equity Fund

Beltone for irade and distribution
Belione partners holding co. Lid PV
Union Bay Holding BVI

Beltone Financial for portfolio
management

Other related parties

EGX funds company

Key management compensation

As of Asol
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Recesvables Pavables Receivables Pavables
33 2 33 8
1,063
- 16,465 - 17,026
I - 1
- 2,398 - 2,569
an - 659
QI3 - =
20 o -
57 - S
5 S -
13 . -
2 = S
It 5 3
14 . 8
20 - -
1,208 19,274 1.096 20.263

Key management includes exccutive and non-exccutive directors, the chief financial officer and other
managing directors considered key personnel.

The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services amounted to Uss 801
thousand and US$ 861 thousand respectively for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

33. Contingent assets and liabilities

The contingent liabilitics, excluding those related to the Egyptian Company for Mobile Services, are
represented in guarantees issued by the holding company and related to the activities of its subsidiaries, as

follows:

Trans World Associates (Subsidiary)

- A bank guaraniec issued in favour of Link Dot Net amounting to US$ 4,772 thousand, which is
cquivalent 1o EGP 37,365 thousand and valid until July 23, 2016.
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ORASCOM TELECOM MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY HOLDING S.AE.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

- A bank guarantee was issued in favour of NIB Bank amounting to Rupces 250 million equivalent o
US$ 2.4 million and (he guarantee is validated to Sepiember 17, 2017,

Middle Enst and North Africa for Sea Cables — MENA cables (Subsidiary)

- A guarantee issued to one of the subsidiary’s clients amounting to US$ 82 Million to guaranice the
subsidiary to fulfil its contractual obligations represented in performing the contracted services.

Orascom Telecom, Media and Technology Holding

= A Letter of guaranice in favour of Lebanon Ministry of Telecommunication to guarantee Orascom
Telecom Lebanon in the payment of any amount due by the sclected participants amounting to US$
40 Million.

34, Non-cash transactions

Significant non-cash transactions are represented in amounts, which were climinated when preparing the
consolidated cash flows, including US$ 4 million relating to the purchase of fixed asscts during the year
2015. These amounts were reported in the change in creditors and other credit balances.

3s. Subsequent ¢venis

- On February 14, 2016 with refercnce to the announcement made on December 17th, 2015 regarding the
submission of a non-Bidding offer to acquire C1 Capital Holding, Orascom Telecom Media and Technology
Holding S.A.E (“OTMT") announced that it has submitted a Binding offer to the Commercial Intemnational
Bank (“CIB™) to acquire 100% of its fully owned subsidiary CI Capital, the value of the offer is EGP 924
Million which equivalent to US$ 118 Million to be executed through OTMT or Beltone financial Holding.
OTMT has received the acceptance from CIB on the Binding offer subject to reaching an agreement on the
final terms and conditions, and will move forward with the necessary process to complete the transaction.
OTMT looks forward to the successful conclusion of the transaction, however the transaction has not been
exccuted and approved by the regulatory authorities at the date of issuing consolidation financial statements.

- During the subsequent period and in the light of new international sanctions that the United States
administration has decided to impose on the North Korean government and its various department, the
Group’s management to follow up ongoing activities to make sure that the sanctions not violated, and the
two sides reached some understandings, regulatory framework and initial commercial that works on
otganizing the work of telecommunications market in North Korea.

This arrangement will guarantee the fair allocation of subscribers between Koryolink and the Government
telecom operator “Kang Song NET" and initially handling some other issucs faced by Koryolink, such as;
the transfer of the cash balances in local currency to Euro using the parallel market rate (parallel market rate:
1 Euro is equivalent to 8,650 of the local currency, official rate: 1 Euro is cquivalent to 118 of the local
currency). This is conditional that the Korean party will fulfil its obligations. In addition the arrangements
sctting rules allows the transfer profits, in case of the availability of retained camings and foreign currency
balances, nceded for the profits distribution process. The management of the Group is currently monitoring
the exccution of the arrangements, and following up in the remaining issues faced by the Company to reach
a solution, in the light of the new international sanctions.
- OTV (subsidiary company) re-ncquired 100% of Arab Finance company’s shares which amounted to EGP
23 Million which equivalent to US$ 2.5 Million, this due to the inability of the buyer to accomplish the
acquisition procedures and obtain the required permits. .

el

Chief Finaneial Officer Exccutive Chairman and Managing Dircctor
Youssef Shoukry Naguib Sawiris
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